MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, February 27, 2008

4:00 p.m.
Town of High Level Council Chambers
High Level, AB
PRESENT: Greg Newman Reeve
Woalter Sarapuk Deputy Reeve
Peter Braun Councillor
Dicky Driedger Councillor
John W. Driedger Councillor
Ed Froese Councillor
Bill Neufeld ' Councillor
Ray Toews Councillor
Lisa Wardley Councillor

Stuart Watson Couggillor

ABSENT:

f Administrative Officer

Director of Corporate Services

w Director of Environmental Services
Director of Planning & Emergency Services
Executive Assistant

ADMINISTRATION: William (Bill) Kostiw
Joulia Whittletop

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the public and the media.
Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on February 27, 2008
at the Town of High Level Council Chambers in High Level, Alberta.
CALL TO ORDER: 1.a) Call to Order

Reeve Newman called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.
AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda
MOTION 08-02-146 MOVED by Councillor Watson

That the agenda be adopted as amended with the addition of:
11. ¢) Atlas Landing Campground

CARRIED



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

ADOPTION OF THE

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

MOTION 08-02-147

MOTION 08-02-148

BUSINESS ARISING

OUT OF THE MINUTES:

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 08-02-149

GENERAL REPORTS:

MOTION 08-02-150

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Page 20t 8

3.a) Minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council
Meeting

MOVED by Counciller Braun

That the minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council
meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3.b) Minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Council
Meeting

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Council
meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

4. a) None

That the RCMP report by S/Sgt. Steve Wright be received for
information.

CARRIED

6. a) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —
January 24, 2008

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of
January 24, 2008 be received for information.

CARRIED

7.a) Bylaw 656/07 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone a One Mile Radius Around Plan 002-1068, Lots
2, 4 & 5 From Agricultural District 1 (A1) to Direct



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

MOTION 08-02-151

MOTION 08-02-152

Page 3 of 8

Control District 1 {(DC1) (High Level Rural)

Reeve Newman called the public hearing for Bylaw 656/07 to
order at 4:09 p.m.

Reeve Newman asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw
656/07 was properly advertised. Ryan Becker, Director of
Planning & Emergency Services, answered that the bylaw was
advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act.

Reeve Newman asked the Development Authority to outline the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment. Ryan Becker, Director of
Planning & Emergency Services, presented the Development
Authority's submission and indicated that first reading was given
on November 13, 2007.

Reeve Newman asked if Council has any questions of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment. There were no
questions.

Reeve Newman as
regards to propose
received by Ste
Becker, Directo

y submissions were received in

law 856/07. One written submission was
d Kelly Casault and read aloud by Ryan
anning & Emergency Services.

f#asked if there was anyone present who would
i regards to the proposed Bylaw 656/07. Several

Reeve Newman closed the public hearing for Bylaw 656/07 at
4:36 p.m.

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That second reading be given to Bylaw 656/07 being a Land Use
Bylaw amendment to rezone all subject parcels within a one mile
proximity of Plan 002-1068, Lot 2, Lot 4 and Lot 5 from
Agricultural District 1 “A1” to Direct Control District 1 “DC1”.
DEFEATED

MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger

That administration bring back options regarding the proposed

rezoning of a one mile radius surrounding Plan 002-1068, Lot 2,
Lot 4 and Lot 5 through consultation with the affected



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

TENDERS:
COUNCIL COMMITTEE,
CAO AND DIRECTORS
REPORTS:

CORPORATE
SERVICES:

MOTION 08-02-153

MOTION 08-02-154
Requires 2/3

MOTION 08-02-155

OPERATIONAL
SERVICES:

MOTION 08-02-156

Pagedof 8

landowners.
CARRIED
8.a) None

9.a) None

10. a) Mackenzie Housing Lodge — Computer Request

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That an old computer workstation be donated to the Mackenzie
Housing Management Board for the use by residents at the
Heimstead Lodge.

CARRIED

amep
from

orn. $30,000 to $36,000 with the added $6,000 coming
tions through the general operating fund.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
10. ¢) Northern Lights Health Region
MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That administration set up a meeting with the Northern Lights
Health Region.

CARRIED

11. a) Road Construction Request — Ernie Driedger SE 12-
104-16-W5M

MOVED by Councillor Froese

That the Road Construction Request to SE 12-104-16-W5M be
tabled for budget considerations.



=

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

MOTION 08-02-157

MOTION 08-02-158

Requires Unanimous

PLANNING,
EMERGENCY, AND
ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES:

MOTION 08-02-159

Page 5of 8

CARRIED
11. b) Gravel Reclamation Liability
MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the Gravel Reclamation Liability report be approved as
presented and that administration make the proposed appropriate
budgetary amendments to bring back to the Council budget
meeting.

CARRIED
11. ¢) Atlas Landing Campground
MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That Mackenzie County pursue securing the lease and
associated survey coststfor the Atlas Recreation Area and a five
year agreement wit al non-profit group, subject to a detailed
operator's agree vith ftinding coming from the parks and
recreation bud

CARRIED;

Ree 3 n recessed the meeting at 5:12 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 5:28 p.m.

12. a) Bylaw 667/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M from Hamlet
Residential-Commercial Transitional District
“HRCT”, Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1” and
Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2” to
Public/Institutional District “HP” (Hamlet of La Crete)

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That first reading be given to Bylaw 667/08, being a Land Use
Bylaw amendment to rezone Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M from
Hamlet Residential-Commercial Transitional District “HRCT”,
Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1” and Hamlet Commercial
District 2 "HC2” to Public/Institutional District “HP” in the Hamlet
of La Crete.

CARRIED



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

MOTION 08-02-160

INFORMATION/
CORRESPONDENCE:

MOTION 08-02-161

MOTION 08-02-162

MOTION 08-02-163

IN CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 08-02-164

Page a8

12. b) Bylaw 668/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone
Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 from Hamlet Residential
District 1 “HR1” to Hamlet Residential District 3 “HR3”
(Hamlet of La Crete)

MOVED by Councillor Froese

That first reading be given to Bylaw 668/08, being a Land Use
Bylaw amendment to rezone Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 from
Hamlet Residential District 1 “HR1"” to Hamiet Residential District
3 “HR3” in the Hamlet of La Crete. Furthermore, that a tentative
plan by a surveyor is required, clearly indicating the proposed
subdivision boundaries, the placement of the buildings and the
required parking stall, prior to the passing of this Bylaw.

DEFEATED

13. a) Information/Correspondence ltems

That administration review the required sign replacement within
the County and advise the Alberta Motor Association.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That Councillor Braun be authorized to attend the Persons with
Developmental Disabilities Northwest Spring Celebrafion and

Awards Night on May 9, 2008 in Grande Prairie.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 7 of 8
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 18
(1) at 5:45 p.m.

14. a) Personnel

14. b) Special Projects

14. ¢) Inter-municipal Negotiations

14. d) Forestry

14. e) Legal

CARRIED
MOTION 08-02-165 MOVED by Councillor Neufeld
That Council move out of camera at 6:25 p.m.
CARRIED
14. a) Personnel

MOTION 08-02-166 MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the personnel e e approved as presented.

CARRIED

MOTION 08-02-167 MO > souncillor Watson

That the cial projects negotiations report be received for
information and that the committee continue.

CARRIED
14. ¢) Inter-Municipal Negotiations
MOTION 08-02-1 68 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the inter-municipal negotiations report be received for
information.

CARRIED

14. d} Forestry

MOTION 08-02-169 MOVED by Councillor Braun



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 8of 8
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 27, 2008

That administration prepare a letter to the Premier and the
Minister of Sustainable Resource Development regarding the
cross border transfer of hog fuel.
CARRIED
14. e) Legal

MOTION 08-02-170 MOVED by Councillor Froese

That the legal report be received as presented and that
negotiations continue to resolve these matters.

CARRIED
NEXT MEETING DATE: 15. a) Regular Council Meeting

Regular Council Meeting
Tuesday, March 11, 2008

10:00 a.m. 4@%
Council Chambers, Eort %milion, AB

ADJOURNMENT: 16. a) Adjournment:

S,

MOTION 08-02-171 MOVED ¢ n%llvﬁBraun
Thattfie F % ylar Council meeting be adjourned at 6:27 p.m.
CARRIED”

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on Tuesday, March 11, 2008

Greg Newman, Reeve Carcl Gabriel, Executive Assistant



Mackenzie County

Action List as of February 27, 2008

Council Meeting Motions Requiring Action

06-714

That the Wolfe Lake Water Point be referred to
the Operations Committee for review.

ngggns_gwmmuwm:mn

e
5’3555555‘3255&5&55

That a m:n[stratlon work on the three and
seven year infrastructure plans and consult
with engineers as required.

John K.
Ed, John W.
Bill N., Ryan

In progress

07-11-1050

07-12-1112

"08-01-027

sources from municipal, provincial, and federal
entities and bring back options to Council.

That admlnlstratlon negotlate the purchase of
Public Land with Alberta Sustainable Resource
Development for the future urban expansion for
the Hamlet of Zama.

That MackenZIe County seek Request for
Proposals for the metal recycling project.

07-10-958 That the Chief Administrative Offlcer foIIow up Jason Ryan, | April 10/08
with the Emergency Services communications | John, Joulia
network.

07-10-984 That all County building inspections be Joulia In progress
completed before the end of the year. John

Mark

07-10-992 That administrative support be provided to Bill K. In progress

Mustus Energy Ltd. to investigate funding Greg N.

[n progress

In progress

That the County engineering firms be reduced | Management | In progress
to include the following and that administration
be instructed to prepare service agreements
with them:
Council Meeting Action List Page 1 0of 3

27-Feb-08




Stewart, Weir & Co.
AMEC Engineering
ISL Engineering
EXH Engineering

" 08-02-008

designate work with Mackenzie Housing
regarding the affordable housing proposal in
Zama.

That the suggestions for coordinated projects

Joulia

Joulia

In progress

with the Town of High Level be tabled until the Bill K.
new Municipal Sustainability [nitiative funding
guidelines are available.
08-02-110 | That administration be instructed to set up a tri- Bill K. In progress
council meeting with the Mackenzie Housing Carol
Management Board in regards to their request
for an annual requisition towards a capital
reserve for future lodge projects.
08-02-113 | That the Land Use Bylaw amendment to Ryan in review
rezone Part of NW 19-109-19-W5M from Stuart
Agricultural Industrial District 1 “A1” to Rural Greg
Industrial District 1 “RI1” be tabled for further Bill K.
information including an area structure plan,
access, and buffer zone.
08-02-116 | That administration be instructed to reach an Bill K. In progress
equitable agreement with Jake & Susanne
Wolfe in regards to their proposed subdivision
located at NW 31-109-18-W5M.
08-02-119 | That Mackenzie County pursue securing the John In progress
lease and associated survey costs for the Bill K.
Tompkins Landing Campground and a five year Ryan
agreement with the local group subject to a
detailed operator's agreement with funding
coming from the Parks and Recreation budget.
08-02-120 | That the ATCO Electric contracts be tabled for Bill K. In progress
further information. Mark
Joulia
Council Meeting Action List Page 2 of 3

27-Feb-08




08-02-123

"08-02-152

That Mackenzie County install two stop signs
with flashing red solar lights on Tower road
within the Hamlet of Zama, subject to Bylaw
review.

e
That administration bring back options .
regarding the proposed rezoning of a one mile

radius surrounding Plan 002-1068, Lot 2, Lot 4
and Lot 5 through consultation with the affected
landowners.

John K.

Ryan
Bill K.
Stuart

In progress
Fall 2008

In progress

08-02-155

That administration set up a meeting with the
Northern Lights Health Region.

Bill K.

‘In progress

08-02-156

That the Road Construction Request to SE 12-
104-16-W5M be tabled for budget
considerations.

John

08-02-157

That the Gravel Reclamation Liability report be
approved as presented and that administration
make the proposed appropriate budgetary
amendments to bring back to the Council
budget meeting.

Joulia
Bill K.

08-02-158

That Mackenzie County pursue securing the
lease and associated survey costs for the Aflas
Recreation Area and a five year agreement
with a local non-profit group, subject to a
detailed operator's agreement with funding
coming from the parks and recreation budget.

John
Ryan

In progress

08-02-162

That administration review the required sign
replacement within the County and advise the
Alberta Motor Association.

John

In progress

08-02-169

That administration prepare a letter to the
Premier and the Minister of Sustainable
Resource Development regarding the cross
border transfer of hog fuel.

Bill K.

In progress

Council Meeting Action List

27-Feb-08

Page 3 of 3







CALL TO ORDER:

AGENDA:

ADOPTION OF THE

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

BUSINESS ARISING
OUT OF THE
MINUTES:

DELEGATIONS:

GENERAL
REPORTS:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

TENDERS:

4,

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, February 27, 2008

4:00 p.m.

Town of High Level Council Chambers

High Level, Alberta

AGENDA
Page
Call to Order
Adoption of Agenda
Minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council 7
Meeting

Minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Council 23
Meeting

RCMP

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 28
- January 24, 2008

Bylaw 656/07 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 43
Rezone a One Mile Radius Around Plan 002-

1068, Lots 2, 4 & 5 From Agriculturai District 1

(A1) to Direct Control District 1 (DC1) (High Level

Rural) — 4:00 p.m.

Naone






MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA
February 27, 2008

COUNCIL 9.
COMMITTEE, CAO

AND DIRECTORS
REPORTS:

CORPORATE 10.

SERVICES:

OPERATIONAL 11.

SERVICES:

PLANNING, 12.

EMERGENCY, AND
ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES:

INFORMATION / 13.

CORRESPONDENCE:

b)

None

Mackenzie Housing Lodge — Computer Request
New Xerox Purchase for La Crete Office

Northern Lights Heaith Region

Road Construction Request — Ernie Driedger
SE 12-104-16-W5M

Gravel Reclamation Liability

Bylaw 667/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M from Hamlet
Residential-Commercial Transitional District
*HRCT”, Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1” and
Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2” to
Public/Institutional District “HP” (Hamlet of La
Crete)

Bylaw 668/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 from Hamlet
Residential District 1 “HR1” to Hamlet Residential
District 3 “HR3"” (Hamlet of La Crete)

Information/Correspondence ltems

PAGE 2

51

55

o7

63

fat

101

107

113






MACKEMZIE COUNTY PAGE 3
REGULAR COUNGIL AGENDA
February 27, 2008

IN CAMERA 14. a) Personnel
SESSION:
b) Special Projects
c) Inter-municipal Negotiations
d)  Forestry
e) Legal
f)
9)
NEXT MEETING 15. Q) Regular Council Meeting
DATE: Tuesday, March 11, 2008
10:00 a.m.

Council Chambers — Fort Vermilion, AB

( ADJOURNMENT: 16. a) Adjournment






Agenda ltem # g . (i )

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: February 27, 2008

Presented By: - William Kostiw, Chief Administrative Officer

Title: Minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council Meeting
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

ECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular Council meeting be adopted as
presented. .

Author:  C. Gabriel Review by: ' CAO %Ak

-7~






MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, February 12, 2008
10:00 am
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

PRESENT: Greg Newman Reeve
Walter Sarapuk Deputy Reeve
Peter Braun Councillor (teleconference)
Dicky Driedger Councillor
John W. Driedger Councillor
Bill Neufeld Councillor
Ray Toews Councillor
Lisa Wardley Councillor (arrived at 10:21 a.m.)
Stuart Watson Councillor

ABSENT: Ed Froese Cougl

ADMINISTRATION: William (Bill} Kostiw
Joulia Whittleton
Ryan Becker
Mark Schonken;

1 inistrative Officer

ctor of Corporate Services

rettor of Planning & Emergency Services
Director of Public Works & Agriculture
Director of Environmental Services
Executive Assistant

ALSO PRESENT:  Susan McNaeil'
Members of the pubiic.

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on February 12, 2008
at the Council Chambers in Fort Vermilion, Alberta.

CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order

Reeve Newman called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m.
AGENDA: 2.a) Adoption of Agenda
MOTION 08-02-090 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger

That the agenda be adopted as amended with the addition of:
10. k) Manager's Meetings

CARRIED



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

ADOPTION OF THE
PREVIOUS MINUTES:

MOTION 08-02-091

MOTION 08-02-092

BUSINESS ARISING

OUT OF THE MINUTES:

DELEGATIONS:

GENERAL REPORTS:

MOTION 08-02-093

TENDERS:

COUNCIL COMMITTEE,
CAO AND DIRECTORS
REPORTS:

Page 2 of 14

3.a) Minutes of the January 30, 2008 Regular Council
Meeting

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the minutes of the January 30, 2008 Regular Council
meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. b) Minutes of the February 1, 2008 Special Council
(Budget) Meeting

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the minutes of the February 1, 2008 Special Council
meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

4.a) None
5.a) RCMP
resent at the meeting.

cipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —
uary 9, 2008

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of
January 9, 2008 be received for information.

CARRIED
8.a) None

9.a) Council Committee Reports

Councillor D. Driedger reported on the Agriculture Land Task
Force meeting.

Councillor Watson reported on the CAMRIF funding

-10-



N

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

MOTION 08-02-094

MOTION 08-02-095

Page 3 of 14

announcement for Zama.
Councillor Toews reported on the AAMD&C Zone meeting.

Councillor J. Driedger reported on the Mackenzie Economic
Development Corporation, Fire/EMS banquet in La Crete, budget
meeting, and the AAMD&C Zone meeting.

Deputy Reeve Sarapuk reported on the Northwest Reeves &
Mayors meeting, Regional Economic Development Initiative
meetings, meeting with the Town of Rainbow Lake, Northern
Forest Education Society meeting, Public Advisory Committee
meeting, and the AAMD&C Zone meeting.

Reeve Newman reported on the CAMRIF funding announcement
for Zama, meeting with the Town of Rainbow Lake and Husky,
and the AAMD&C Zone meeting.

Councillor Wardley joined the meeting at 10:21 a.m.

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That the council verbal reports be accepted as information.
CARRIED

9.b) CAO & Director Reports

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That the Director of Corporate Services, Director of Public Works
& Agriculture, Director of Environmental Services, Director of
Planning & Emergency Services, and the Chief Admlnlstratlve
Officer reports be accepted for mformat[on

CARRIED

Reeve Newman recessed the meeting at 10:56 a.m. and

-11-



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 4 of 14
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

reconvened the meeting at 11:10 a.m.

CORPORATE 10. a) Request for Utilities Charge Reduction
SERVICES:
MOTION 08-02-096 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the sewer portion of a utility bill for Lot 21, Block 6, Plan
892-1752 be reduced by $246.00 as requested.

CARRIED
10. b) Municipal Sustainability Initiative
MOTION 08-02-097 MOVED by Councillor Watson

That a letter of support be sent to the Town of High Level in
regards to their Municipal Sustainability Initiative grant projects.

CARRIED
MOTION 08-02-098 MOVED by Coune ardley

That the suggestiofisd0r coordinated projects with the Town of
High Levej# %d until the new Municipal Sustainability
Initiati\ggw i

uidelines are available.

10. ¢) La Crete Municipal Nursing Association

MOTION 08-02-099 MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the La Crete Municipal Nursing Association correspondence
be received for information.

CARRIED
10. d) Disaster Plan
MOTION 08-02-100 MOVED by Councilior Toews
That the disaster plan be received for information.
CARRIED

10. e) Disaster Forum 2008

-12-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

MOTION 08-02-101

MOTION 08-02-102

* MOTION 08-02-103

MOTION 08-02-104

MOTION 08-02-105

MOTION 08-02-106

Page 5 of 14

MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the Disaster Forum 2008 be received for information.
CARRIED

10.f) Alberta Urban Municipalities Association Membership
MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That Mackenzie County continue their membership with the
Alberta Urban Municipalities Association.

CARRIED

10. g} La Crete Chamber of Commerce Annual General
Meeting

That Mackenzie
Chamber of Ca

accept the offer by the La Crete
to attend their Annual General Meeting.

MOV Jeputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the®er diems to attend the La Crete Chamber of Commerce
Annual General Meeting be waived.

CARRIED
10. h) Meeting Dates
MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the March 26, 2008 Regular Council meeting be held in Fort
Vermilion.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the April 23, 2008 Regular Council meeting be held in La
Crete at the Ridgeview Central School beginning at 1:00 p.m.

-13-



MACKENZIEE COUNTY Bags 6 of 14
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

CARRIED
MOTION 08-02-107 MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the April 8, 2008 Regular Council meeting be moved to April
10, 2008.

CARRIED
10. i) CAO Evaluation Date
MOTION 08-02-108 MOVED by Councillor Wardley
That the CAO evaluation be set for June 25, 2008 at 12:00 p.m.
CARRIED
10. j) Mackenzie Housing Management Boafd

MOTION 08-02-109 MOVED by Council[or_,é[ews

g Management Board 2008 draft
for information.

MOTION 08-02-110 MOVED By, Beuncillor Wardley
That administration be instructed to set up a tri-council meeting
with the Mackenzie Housing Management Board in regards to
their request for an annual requisition towards a capital reserve
for future lodge projects.
CARRIED
10. k) Manager’s Meetings

MOTION 08-02-111 MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the Reeve or Deputy Reeve be authorized to attend
Manager's meetings.

CARRIED

Reeve Newman recessed the meeting at 12:00 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 12:42 p.m.

-14-



(

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2608

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 08-02-112

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MOTION 08-02-113

Page 7 of 14

5. b) Tompkins Landing Campground
MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the presentation by John Krahn regarding the Tompkins
Landing Campground be received for information.

CARRIED

7.a) Bylaw 652/07 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Part of NW 19-109-19-W5M from Agricultural
District 1 (A1) to Rural Industrial District 1 (RI1) (High
Level Rural) (Inter-municipal Development Plan
Corridor)

Reeve Newman called the public hearing for Bylaw 652/07 to
order at 1:04 p.m.

Reeve Newman asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw
652/07 was properly adgertised. Ryan Becker, Director of
Plannlng & Emerge ices, answered that the bylaw was
' Jagee with the Municipal Government Act.

2gthe Development Authority to outline the
Bylaw Amendment Ryan Becker, Director of

Reeve Newman asked if Council has any questions of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.

Reeve Newman asked if any submissions were received in
regards to proposed Bylaw 652/07. One submission was
received.

Reeve Newman asked if there was anyone present who would
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 652/07. Mike and
Wendy Parkin were in attendance to discuss their concerns
regarding the proposed Bylaw.

Reeve Newman closed the public hearing for Bylaw 652/07 at
119 p.m.

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the Land Use Bylaw amendment to rezone Part of NW 19-

_‘l h-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 08-02-114

MOTION 08-02-115

MOTION 08-02-116

MOTION 08-02-117

Page & of 14

109-19-W5EM from Agricuttural Industrial District 1 “A1” to Rural
Industrial District 1 “RI1” be tabled for further information
including an area structure plan, access, and buffer zone.

CARRIED

5.¢) Peace/Upper Hay Access Planning Guidelines
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the presentation by Sustainable Resource Development
regarding the Peace/Upper Hay Access Planning Guidelines be

received for infarmation.

CARRIED

Reeve Newman recessed the meeting at 1:54 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 2:00 p.m.

e & Susanne Wolfe

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That administration be instructed to reach an equitable
agreement with Jake & Susanne Wolfe in regards to their
proposed subdivision located at NW 31-109-18-W5M.
CARRIED

5. 9) ISL Engineering

MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the update by ISL Engineering be received for information.

CARRIED

Reeve Newman recessed the meeting at 3:12 p.m. and

_16_



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 9 of 14
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

reconvened the meeting at 3:22 p.m.
5.f) Norwood Transport — Request to Waive a Fire Invoice

Councillor J. Driedger declared himself in conflict and left the
meeting at 3:23 p.m.

MOTION 08-02-118 MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the request to waive a fire invoice by Norwood Transport be
received for information.

CARRIED
Councillor J. Driedger rejoined the meeting at 3:48 p.m.

OPERATIONAL 11. a) Tompkins Landing Campground
SERVICES:

MOTION 08-02-119 MOVED by Councillor Wif?

That Mackenzie
associated su
and a five year
detailed
Park

pursue securing the lease and
for the Tompkins Landing Campground
nent with the local group subject to a
agreement with funding coming from the
ation budget.
CARR
11. b} ATCO Electric Contracts
MOTION 08-02-120 MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger

That the ATCO Electric contracts be tabled for further
information.

CARRIED
11. ¢} CAMRIF Funding
MOTION 08-02-121 MOVED by Councillor Braun
That Mackenzie County proceed with tendering the Canada-
Alberta Municipal Rural Infrastructure Fund (CAMRIF) progects for

Aspen Drive in the Hamlet of Zama and 101% Street — 915
Avenue in the Hamiet of La Crete.

-17-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2048

MOTION 08-02-122

MOTION 08-02-123

MOTION 08-02-124

MOTION 08-02-125

Requires Unanimous

MOTION 08-02-126

Page 10of 14

CARRIED
MOVED by Councilior Neufeld

That the 109™ Avenue from 100" to 101%! Street project in the
Hamlet of La Crete be added as a separate schedule to the
tender for the Canada-Alberta Municipal Rural Infrastructure
Fund (CAMRIF) projects.

CARRIED

11. d) Mackenzie Applied Research Association Funding
Request

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the Mackenzie Applied Research Association’s annual grant
for 2008 be increased to $45,000, with funding coming from the
2008 operating budget.

CARRIED

MOVED un%lllor Wardley

zie County install two stop signs with flashing red
on Tower road within the Hamlet of Zama, subject to

CARRIED
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk
That the following items be added to the agenda:
11. f) Hutch Lake
14. g) Medical clinic
CARRIED
11. f) Hutch Lake
MOVED by Councillor Wardley
That a letter be sent to the Minister of Tourism, Parks, Recreation

and Culture requesting that the Hutch Lake Campsite remain a
provincial park.

-18-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

PLANNING,
EMERGENCY, AND
ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES:

MOTION 08-02-127

MOTION 08-02-128

MOTION 08-02-129

Page 11 of 14

CARRIED

Reeve Newman recessed the meeting at 4:15 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 4:26 p.m.

12. a) Bylaw 664/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Add
General Services Establishment to the Discretionary
Uses of Hamlet Country Residential District 1 “HCR1”

MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger

That first reading be given to Bylaw 664/08, being a Land Use
Bylaw amendment to add General Services Establishment to the
Discretionary Uses of Hamlet Country Residential District 1

“‘HCR1".

DEFEATED

12. b) Bylaw 665/08s
Part of SE
“A1 bl to =

Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone
4W5M from Agricultural District 1
ontrol District 1 “DC1”

ing be given to Bylaw 665/08, being a Land Use
dment to rezone Part of SE 13-106-14-W5M from
District 1 (A1) to Direct Control District 1 (DC1).

CARRIED

12. ¢) Road Name Assignment Request for Range Road 15-1
— West of SW 13-106-15-W5M and North of Highway
697

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the road name request for Range Road 15-1 West of SW

13-106-15-W5M and north of Highway 697 be approved and that

it be named John L. Friesen Road.

CARRIED

12. d) Mackenzie County School Zone Review — La Crete
Public School

-19-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

MOTION 08-02-130

MOTION 08-02-131

MOTION 08-02-132

INFORMATION/
CORRESPONDENCE:

MOTION 08-02-133

IN CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 08-02-134

Page 12 of 14

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the school zone review at La Crete Public School be tabled
to the summer of 2008.

CARRIED

12. e) Johan Wolf — Request to Waive an Ambulance
Invoice

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the request to waive an ambulance invoice be denied and
that Johan Wolf pay invoice #5557 in full in the amount of
$607.78.

CARRIED

12.f) Peter D. and Katharina Wiebe — Request to Waive a
Fire Invoice &

rmation/Correspondence ltems

MOVED by Councilior Watson

That the information/correspondence items be accepted for
information purposes.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 18
(1) at 4:58 p.m.

14. a) Personnel

14. b) Special Projects

-20-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

MOTION 08-02-135

MOTION 08-02-136

MOTION 08-02-137

NEXT MEETING DATE:

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 08-02-138

Page 13 of 14

14. c) Inter-municipal Negotiations
14. d) Forestry
14. e} Legal
14. f) White Zone Land Sale
14. g) Medical Clinic
CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Wardley
That Councit move out of camera at 6:12 p.m.
CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the Inter-municipal Negotiating Committee continue
negotiations as discussed in-camera.

DEFEATED

MOVED by Coungi ; riedger

That a Special - e held on Thursday, February 14, 2008
at 10:00 & e purpose of discussing inter-municipal
negotia]

CARR

15. a) Regular Council Meeting

Regular Council Meeting

Wednesday, February 27, 2008

4:00 p.m.

Town of High Level Council Chambers, High Level, AB

16. a) Adjournment

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That the Regular Council meeting be adjourned at 6:33 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on Wednesday, February 27,

2008.

-21-



MACKENZIE COUNTY Paga 14 of 14
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
February 12, 2008

Greg Newman, Reeve Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

_22_



Agenda ltem # f:; k) 2

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Macksnzie

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: February 27, 2008

Presented By: William Kostiw, Chief Administrative Officer

Title: ' Minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Council Meeting
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Couh.cil meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the minutes of the February 14, 2008 Special Council meetlng be adopted as

presented.

Author: _C. Gabriel Review by: ' -&0 %&

-2 3_



-24-



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

Thursday, February 14, 2008
10:00 a.m.
Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, AB

PRESENT: Greg Newman Reeve

Walter Sarapuk Deputy Reeve

Peter Braun Councillor {teleconference)
Dicky Driedger Councillor

John W. Driedger Councillor

Ed Froese Councillor

Bill Neufeld Councillor

Ray Toews Councillor

Stuart Watson Councillor

ABSENT: Lisa Wardley

ADMINISTRATION: William (Bill) Kostiw
Joulia Whittleton
Carol Gabriel

f Administrative Officer
ctor of Corporate Services
Cutive Assistant

ALSO PRESENT:

Minutes of the Special Councii m
the Council Chambers in Fort Vermi

or Mackenzie County held on February 14, 2008 at
Alberta.

CALL TO ORDER: 1.a} Call to Order

Reeve Newman called the meeting to order at 10:13 a.m.
AGENDA: 2.a) Approval of Waiver
MOTION 08-02-139 MOVED by Councillor Neufeld

That the waiver for the Special Council meeting be approved.

CARRIED

2. b) Adoption of Agenda
MOTION 08-02-140 MOVED by Councillor Froese

That the agenda be adopted as amended.

_25_



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
February 14, 2008

MOTION 08-02-141

IN CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 08-02-142

MOTION 08-02-143

MOTION 08-02-144

OTHER BUSINESS:

Page20f 3

2.¢c) Councillor Teleconference
CARRIED

2.c¢) Councillor Teleconference
MOVED by Councillor Froese

That Councilior Braun be authorized to attend the meeting via
teleconference.

CARRIED

Councillor Braun joined the meeting via teleconference at 10:18
a.m.

3. Inter-municipal Negotiations

MOVED by Councillor Watson

essed the meeting at 12:10 p.m. and

Reeve Newmgn
&4 the.mketing at 12:55 p.m.

reconven;
MO uncillor Neufeld

That Council move out of camera at 2:06 p.m.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the inter-municipal negotiations proposal be approved in
principal, as discussed in-camera, for use by the negotiating
committee.

CARRIED

4.a) Review Planning Process

Information item.

4. b) Special Projects

_26_



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
February 14, 2008

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 08-02-145

Page 3 of 3

Information item.

5.a) Adjournment

MOVED by Councillor Watson

That the Special Council meeting be adjourned at 2:25 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on Wednesday, February 27,

2008.

Greg Newman, Reeve

Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

_27_



_2 8_



Agenda ltem # é a)

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting:
Meeting Date:
Presented By:

Title:

Regular Council Meeting
February 27, 2008

William Kostiw, Chief Administrative Officer

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2008

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Information item. The adopted minutes of the January 24, 2008 meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of January 24, 2008 be
received for information.

Author: _C. Gabriel

Review By: L)OJAO M

-29-



-30-



PRESENT

ABSENT

2.

MOTION 08-09

3.

MOTION 08-10

Mackenzie County
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

La Crete Heritage Center
La Crete, Alberta

Thursday, January 24, 2008 @ 10:00 a.m.

Jack Eccles Vice — Chair, MPC Member
Ed Froese Councillor

Manfred Gross MPC Member

Beth Kappelar MPC Member

Ryan Becker Director of Planning and Emergency Services
Marion Krahn Development Officer

Liane Lambert Development Officer

Vicky Krahn Planning Administrative Support

Peter Braun Chair, Councillor

CALL TO ORDER

Jack Eccles called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MOVED by Manfred Gross
That the agenda be adopted with the foliowing additions:

6h) Bylaw 664/08 Abe and Kristiana Driedger
Bc) Development Permit Statistic Report

CARRIED

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That the minutes of the January 9, 2008 Municipal Planning
Commission meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

-31-



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 2 of 11

MOTION 08-11

DEVELOPMENT

Development Permit Application 06-DP-08

Klaus Schmidt; Home Based Business (Computer and Network
Services)

Plan 6162RS, Lot 5; Fort Vermilion

MOVED by Ed Froese

That Development Permit 06-DP-08 on Plan 6162RS, Lot 5 in the
name of Klaus Schmidt be approved with the following conditions:

1.

The home based business shall not involve the storage of
goods in the public view, a change in appearance of the
residence or its accessory buildings.

An unlighted sign to identify the home based business may
be placed in a window or exterior of the house and the sign
shall not exceed 1.1 meters (12 square feet).

At all times, the privacy of the adjacent dwellings shall be
preserved and the home based business shall not unduly
affect the surrounding residents by way of excessive lighting,
noise, traffic, congestion, late visitations by clients, etcetera.

This Permit may be revoked at any time, if, in the opinion of
the Development Authority, the Home Based Business
(Computer and Network Services) has become detrimental
or otherwise incompatible with the amenities of the
neighborhood.

Provide adequate off street parking as follows: The minimum
parking shall be 300 square feet per vehicle owned plus an
additional 500 square feet for off street parking. “One
parking space, including the driveway area, shall occupy 300
square feet.”

CARRIED

_.32_.



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 3 of 11

b) Development Permit Application 08-DP-08
Les Giesbrecht; Repair Shop — Vehicle and Small Engine
Repair and Maintenance with Variance
SE 14-104-16-W5M;
Buffalo Head Prairie/Steephill Creek Area

MOTION 08-12 MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That Development Permit 08-DP-08 on SE 14-104-16-W5M in the
name of Les Giesbrecht, be approved with the following conditions:

1.

A variance of the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw section
7.3, subsection B is hereby granted to allow a repair shop -
vehicle and small engine repair and maintenance - within the
existing detached garage/shop.

PRIOR to any new construction taking place on the subject
property contact the Development Department for a
Development Permit.

Obtain written approval from Alberta Infrastructure and
Transportation regarding the proposed development prior to
commencement of the development.

All conditions and requirements by Alberta Infrastructure and
Transportation are to be met to their specifications and
standards.

Obtain approval and documentation as required by the
Alberta Motor Vehicle Industry Council.

All conditions and requirements by the Alberta Motor Vehicle
Industry Council are to be met to their specifications and
standards.

PRIOR to installation of a new access or changing location
of existing access contact Alberta Infrastructure and
Transportation at 780-624-6280. Access to be constructed to
Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation standards at the
expense of the developer.

. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface

drainage.

CARRIED

-33-



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 4 of 11

¢} Development Permit Application 10-DP-08
Randy Krahn; Automotive Sales with Variance
Plan 052 4622, Block 23, Lot 7; La Crete

MOTION 08-13 MOVED by Manfred Gross

That Development Permit 10-DP-08 on Plan 052 4622, Block 23,
Lot 7 in the name of Randy Krahn, be approved with the following
conditions:

1.

A variance of the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw section
7.14, subsection A is hereby granted to allow an automotive
equipment sales business.

PRIOR to any new construction taking place on the subject
property contact the Development Department for a
Development Permit.

Obtain approval and documentation as required by the
Alberta Motor Vehicle Industry Council.

All conditions and requirements by the Alberta Motor Vehicle
Industry Council are to be met to their specifications and
standards.

PRIOR to installation of a new access or changing location of
existing access, complete a Request for Access form by
contacting the Road/Maintenance Department for Mackenzie
County at 928-3983. Access to be constructed to Mackenzie
County standards and at the developer’s expense.

The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface
drainage.

CARRIED

-34-



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 5 of 11

MOTION 08-14

MOTION 08-15

b)

SUBDIVISION

Subdivision Application 54-SUB-06
NW 33-109-15-W5M; High Level Rural
Ron and Trudy Ramseyers

MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That a time extension be granted to January 18, 2009 for
subdivision application 54-SUB-06 on NW 33-109-15-W5M in the
name of Ron and Trudy Ramseyers.

CARRIED

Subdivision Application 60-SUB-07
NW 25-104-15-W5M; Buffalo Head Prairie
George and Frieda Boehlig and Cornie and Eva Teichroeb

MOVED by Ed Froese

That subdivision application 60-SUB-07 in the name of George and
Frieda Boehlig and Cornie and Eva Teichroeb on NW 25-104-15-
W3M be approved with the following conditions:

1. This approval is for a single lot subdivision, 10.08 acres
(4.08 hectares) in size.

2. The proposed east subdivision boundary may be moved 30
meters to the east to compensate for the 30 meter wide
service road right-of-way required by Alberta Infrastructure
and Transportation.

3. Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

4. Applicant/developer shall enter into a Developer's
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain,
but is not limited to:

a. Provision of access to the subdivision and the
balance of the quarter in accordance with Mackenzie
County standards and Alberta Infrastructure and
Transportation and at the developer’s expense.

_35-



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2008
Page 6 of 11

f.

All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta
Private Sewage Treatment and Disposal Regulations.
The existing pump out shall be moved to conform to
current regulations.

Prior to any development on the proposed
subdivision, the developer shall obtain a development
permit from the Municipality.

Provision of utility right-of-way as required by
Northern Lights Gas Co-op.

Subdivision must meet ATCO Electric’s conditions as
follows:

I. Provision of utility right-of-way as required by
ATCO Electric, extending to an alignment 7.5
meters on either side of the power line center
line along the west boundary.

Il. There must be 6.1 meters clearance from all
buildings, trees, and materials to the power line.
The existing and any future power line route will
require maintenance of a cleared right-of-way to
ground level and to a minimum width of 6.1
meters on either side of the line route. Therefore
the owner should be aware of the potential for
brushing along the existing and possible future
power line alignment.

Ill. The landowner/developer is cautioned not to
plant trees which may subsequently grow into
the power line right-of-way.

IV. Buildings or equipment should not be located
within 5.0 meters of the power line.

Subdivision must meet the Alberta Infrastructure and
Transportation’s conditions as follows:

i. Dedication of a 30 meter wide service road
right-of-way by caveat agreement across the
highway frontage of NW 25-104-15-W5M from
the north boundary of this quarter section to
the south boundary of the proposed
subdivision parcel at no cost to the department.

-36-



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 7 of 11

MOTION 08-16

ii. The existing direct highway access on the
south boundary of this quarter section may
remain on a temporary basis to be used for
agricultural access only to NW 25-104-15-W5M
and SW 25-104-15-W5M. No compensation
shall be payable to the developers or their
assigns or successors when the department
relocates this temporary access or if highway
access is removed and access provided via
service road.

fii. The existing direct highway access north of this
quarter section is not to be used for any
purpose by the owners of the proposed parcel
or remnant land. This access may remain on a
temporary basis to be used for agricultural
access only to SW 36-104-15-W5M.

CARRIED
Subdivision Application 61-SUB-07

SW 1-107-14-W5M; Blumenort
Tobias and Judith Penner

Jéck declared conflict of interest as he is the real estate agent for
Tobias and Judith Penner.

MOVED by Manfred Gross

That subdivision application 61-SUB-07 in the name of Tobias and
Judith Penner on SW 01-107-14-\W5M be accepted with the
following conditions.

1. This approval is for a single lot subdivision, 5.33 hectares
(13.17 acres) in size.

2. Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided or arrangements made which
are satisfactory to the municipality.

3. Applicant/developer shall enter into a Developer's

Agreement with Mackenzie County which shall contain,
but is not limited to:

,.3?..



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 8 of 11

Provision of access to the subdivision and to the
balance of the quarter in accordance with
Mackenzie County standards and at the
developer's expense.

All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta

Private Sewage Treatment and Disposal
Regulations.

Prior to any development on the proposed
subdivision, the developer shall obtain a
development permit from the Municipality.

. Provisions of a Maintenance Easement on the

existing line into the yard as required by ATCO
Electric.

Provision of utility right-of-way as required by
Northern Lights Gas
Co-op.

Dedication of the most westerly 5.18 metres of the
proposed subdivision for future road widening.

4. Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation require one of
the two following options:

Dedication by way of caveat a 30 meter wide
service road right-of-way by plan of survey across
the highway frontage of the remnant lands and
that portion of the proposed parcel with 30 meters
of the highway property line at no cost to the
development department (see aftached sketch).
AIT is prepared to consider alternate alignments
for the service road that connect the undeveloped
local road right-of-way with the north boundary of
the quarter section and the existing access into
the remnant land or

Construction of a service road from the existing
access into the proposed parcel to the existing
access into the remnant land. Construction of the
service road is to be to the satisfaction of the

._38..



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes

January 24, 2008
Page 9 of 11

d)

municipality and at no cost to AIT. Subject to
construction of the service road required by the
legislation, AlT is prepared to permit the existing
access to the remnant land to be used only for
agricultural access to the remnant land and
residential access to the proposed parcel. A
roadside development permit is required prior to
development of the service road. In the future,
once the service road has been constructed, AlT
will undertake the removal of the existing access
to the proposed parcel.

CARRIED

Subdivision Proposal
Plan 912 3390, Block 15, Lot 33 and 34; La Crete
Henry Knelsen and Peter Harder

The subdivision proposal is to change Northland Place, a six unit
apartment building, from an apartment complex to town houses.
Furthermore, the developer intends to construct one or two
additional units to the buildings west end in the future.

A subdivision proposal was presented to the Municipal Planning
Commission at the March 27, 2007 meeting where the developer's
desire was to change the apartment complex to a condominium.
Since then the developers have reconsidered; the desire is to
change the apartment complex to a townhouse. The difference
between a condominium and a townhouse is that of the lands. A
condominium involves owning the individual unit and having the
lands as common property whereas a townhouse involves the
separation of the building and lands.

The parking availability for tenants and visitors presents a problem
and is something that needs carefut consideration. Currently the
developer has tenant parking in the front of the building (south) with
visitar parking on the west side. If the developers were allowed to
change the apartment complex to a townhouse plus add additional
units the visitor parking would be completely lost as the property is
not large enough to accommodate the required parking.
Furthermore, if the townhouse was allowed, what would become of
the remainder of the lands as far as maintenance and guarantee
that these lands would remain visitor parking.

-39~



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2008
Page 10 of 11

MOTION 08-17 MOVED by Beth Kappelar
That the subdivision application in the name of Henry Knelsen and
Peter Harder on Plan 912 3390, Block 15, Lots 33 and 34 be
allowed to be submitted subject to the subdivision being for the
building only with the lands remaining as common property. No
additional units are permitted to be constructed on these lands.

CARRIED

6. MISCELLANEOQUS ITEMS
a) Action List
The Action List of January 9, 2008 was reviewed. .

b) Bylaw 664/08 Abe and Kristiana Driedger

MOTION 08-18 MOVED by Manfred Gross

That Bylaw 664/08 in the name of Abe and Kristiana Driedger be
accepted as information.

CARRIED

¢) Development Permit Statistic Report

MOTION 08-19 MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That the development permit statistic report be accepted as
information.

CARRIED

7. IN CAMERA
MOTION 08-20 MOVED by Ed Froese

That the Municipal Planning Commission go into camera at
10:59 a.m.

CARRIED

_40..



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2008
Page 11 of 11

MOTION 08-21 MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That the Municipal Planning Commission come out of camera at
11:17 a.m.

CARRIED

8. NEXT MEETING DATES

Municipél Planning Commission meeting dates are scheduled as
follows:

+ Friday, February 15" at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete
# Thursday, February 28" at 6:00 p.m. in Fort Vermilion

9. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION 08-22 MOVED by Ed Froese
That the meeting be adjourned at 11:28 a.m.

CARRIED

These minutes were adopted this 15" day of
February 2008.

-41-



_42_



Agenda ltem # 7 Q>

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: February 27, 2008
Presented By: Ryan Becker, Director of Planning & Emergency Services

PUBLIC HEARING
Bylaw 656/07- Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone a one mile radius around Plan 0021068, Lots 2,4 & 5

Title: . From Agricultural District 1 (A1) to
Direct Control District 1 (DC1)
(High Level Rural)

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Bylaw 656/07, was given first reading at the November 13, 2007 Council meeting, being -
a Land Use Bylaw amendment to rezone a one mile radius surrounding Footner Forest -
Products from Agricultural District 1 “A1” to Direct Control District 1 “DC1”".

Mackenzie County received a request from Footner Forest Products Ltd. (FFP) for the
provision of a one mile buffer surrounding the mill property to prevent any further
~ residential subdivisions or additional residences per quarter section.

This request was first brought forward at the August 29th, 2007 Council meeting.
Council moved that administration discuss with Footner Forest Products, rezoning a one
mile buffer zone surrounding FFP to Direct Control.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

FFP has indicated that while they meet or exceed all regulatory guidelines for their
operations, some of their activities could be irritants to residents in close proximity of the
mill. FEP has indicated that they intend to increase their current productivity within the
next four years which would result in increasing industrial activity and traffic. For this
reason they have requested a one mile buffer surrounding the mill. In light of the current
down turn in the lumber industry this is unlikely however the economy is subject to

change.

Author: L Lambert Reviewed by: _ ' CAO 4}"3/

..43..



By rezoning the area to Direct Control 1 "DC1” Council would make the decision on all
development permits and subdivision applications. This would allow for meaningfui
consultation with FFP on any development within the one mile radius of the mill.

The adjacent landowners were notified prior to the mill being constructed and they did
not express any concerns about the placement of the mill in close proximity to their
lands. However, some developers have come forward now and expressed their feeling
of being “held hostage” by FFP. They believe that FFP‘s request of a one mile buffer will
decrease their land value.

FFP states that they are not opposed to development within Mackenzie County however
would like the County to inform any potential residents, of the lands adjacent to the mill,
of these facts prior to any development activity. While the onus should fail solely on the
purchaser to research and familiarize themselves with the area prior to the purchase of
any lands, any future concerns by adjacent landowners may still be forwarded to the
County.

The moratorium that has been placed on all country residential subdivisions would
serve fo currently prevent the development of the surrounding areas into multi-lot
country residential subdivisions however this may not present a long term solution as
country residential development is likely to continue when the moratorium is lifted.
74 DIRECT CONTROL DISTRICT 1 “DC1”"

The purpose of this District is to provide for Direct Control of development where
deemed necessary by the Municipal District Council.

A, USES

Land uses will be subject to the approval of Council.

B. REQUIREMENTS

(1)  All site requirements shall be at the discretion of Council, based
upon a site plan which is submitted as part of a development permit
application. '

(2)  All development shall conform to the spirit and intent of the
Municipal District of Mackenzie Municipal Development Plan.

(3)  Council may refer fo other sections of this Bylaw to determine

requirements for specific types of proposed land uses on property
zoned under this District.

Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by: CAO

-44-



(4)  When deciding a development permit application, Council shall
consider the following:

(i) the existing and future land use of neighbouring properties;

(i) the provision of municipal services such as water and sewer,
roads, and drainage systems; ‘

(iii)  the provision of access to the subject property; and

(iv)  any considerations which are unique to the proposed
development and/or subject property.

(6)  Councii may decide on other requirements as are necessary,
having regard to the nature of the proposed development.

C. ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURES

(1}  Council shall approve all applications for principal uses on property
zoned under this District. Development proposals for secondary or
ancillary uses may be delegated to the Development Authority at
Council's discretion.

(2)  There shall be no appeal allowed to the Subdivision and
Development Appeal Board on decisions made by Council on
applications for proposed development on land zoned under Direct
Control District.

D. LANDSCAPING
In accordance to Section 4.23 of this Bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion 1

That second reading be given to Bylaw 656/07 being a Land Use Bylaw amendment to
rezone all subject parcels within a one mile proximity of Plan 0021068, Lot 2, Lot 4 and
Lot 5 from Agricultural District 1 "A1” to Direct Control District 1 “DC1”

Motion 2

That third reading be given to Bylaw 656/07 being a Land Use Bylaw amendment to

rezone all subject parcels within a one mile proximity of Plan 0021068, Lot 2, Lot 4 and
Lot 5 from Agricultural District 1 “A1” to Direct Control District 1 “DC1”

Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by: ' CAO

-45-



-46-



BYLAW NO. 656/07

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use
Bylaw, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a General Municipal Plan adopted in 1995, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has
deemed it desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to regulate
development within a specific area.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE

PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS: '

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels within a one mile
proximity of Plan 0021068, Lot 2, Lot 4 and Lot 5 be rezoned from
Agricultural District 1 “A1" to Direct Control District 1 “DC1” as outlined
in attached Schedule A.

First Reading given on the 13 day of November, 2007.

Second Reading given on the day of , 2008.

Third Reading and Assent given on the day of , 2008.

Greg Newman, Reeve

Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

-47-



SCHEDULE “A”

BYLAW No. 656/07

1. That the land use designation of the following property known as:

Subject parcels within a one mile proximity of Plan 0021068, Lot 2, Lot 4 and Lot 5 be

rezoned from Agricultural District 1 “A1” to Direct Control District 1 “DC1” in Rural

High Level.

/

4

/

4

-

e

—

Greg Newman, Reeve

EFFECTIVE THIS

Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

DAY OF

-48-

, 2008.



Mackenzie County

PUBLIC HEARING FOR LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT

BYLAW

Order of Presentation

This Public Hearing will now come to order at

Was the Public Hearing properly advertised?

Will the Development Authority , please outline
the proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment and present his
submission.

Does the Council have any questions of the proposed Land Use
Bylaw Amendment?

Were any submissions received in regards to the proposed Land
Use Bylaw Amendment? [f yes, please read them.

Is there anyone present who would like to speak in regards of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment?

If YES: Does the Council have any questions of the person(s)
making their presentation?

This Hearing is now closed at

REMARKS/COMMENTS:

-49-



-50-



FEB-22-2008 FRI 01:01 PH OPTINAL ENTERPRISES LD FAK NO. 7808410801

 February 22, 2008

MﬁOk@I_lZie_ CO’IJI‘.IIY o ‘ S L
- P.Q box 640, Fort Vermillion, A :
TOH INO - S

To: Liane Lambert, Development Officer

 This letter is in response to the proposed Bylaw 65’6/0,7 to rezone & one-mile radiug
sutrounding Footner Forest Products, As the owners of subdivided land NE ~ 7~ 109

landowners of the quarter seciion our acreage is on to purchase an additional 3-10 acres .
of their land in order to build our home. This futwe Jand site, which we have planned 1o
2dd to-our current land, is, based on drainage and distance from current boundaries, the
only sénsible area o ild.a home, The current 9.1 -acres that we curtently own have

Distriet 1 “A1% it was our understanding that burchasing additional Tand was an‘option.
Throughout our development of our land we have co-operated and followed régulations
and have been in frequent contact with the M.D, If the new rezonin g is changed to Direct
Control “DCI*, the area which we would like to build olr home will not be allowed,

idents of Mackenzie County we fiel that our

opposition to the rezoning should be greatly taken into'consideration. The M.D and,
Footner Forest products should have instituted the Direct Control Bylaw duting the
planning stages of the mill, If Footner's and the M.1)."g initial objective was to rezone the

-~ land atthe time of Footner's proposal to build the mill to be rezoned to Direct Control,
‘we feel Footner would not haye been so readily accepeted by affected land owners,
Although Footner has provided employment opportunities to many residents of High
Level, as a company that came into our community, Footner needs to reco gnize the needs
and wants of area land awners and act upon what land owners as a majority waat.

As bu_sine_'ss_' owners and hopefiil future res

My husband ! regret that we can riot attend the Pubiic',Hcarin g for Bylaw 656/07
February 27, 2008 as our daﬂg_htcr has medical appointments in Edmonton, We would







Mackenzie County Public Hearing Notification for Bylaw 656/07 on Rezoning a
one mile radius around Footner Forest Products.

On February 27, 2008 Council meeting in the High Level Council Chambers in
High Level AB @ 4:00 pm.

Land owners have major concerns regarding Bylaw 656/07.

The concerns are as follows:

- There is a current proposal, by request of Footner Forest Products, to have the County of Mackenzie
restrict development within a one mile perimeter around the mill’s property. The proposed
development restrictions would essentially freeze the ability of these landowners to develop or
subdivide their property in the future. The fand will have no value. 1 can only speculate on the
maotive behind this proposal from the mill as securing land and fixing land prices for future
development. This is a case of a big corporation fiexing its muscle at the expense of the little guy. If
the mill wants this land so badly, why don’t they buy it from the current landowners at a negotiated
price? |think most people can appreciate the injustice of this situation. We personally feel the mill
should be embarrassed for even proposing such a request.

- Why does Footner Forest Products want Direct Control for a one mile radjus?

- Will this freeze all development within the one mile radius?

* Re-placement of buildings ie: building a house where currently there is a
Mobile home.

* 1 your hduse, or surrounding buildings are destroyed by fire or damaged in
any way, will this re-zoning bylaw 656/07 prevent the land owner from
re-building?

* Will water wells or dug outs be allowed?

* Will the current landowners be allowed Leasing or Rent land?

- Mackenzie County purchased land from Jake Elias, are they willing to Purchase the balance of
the land in the one mile radius surrounding Footner Forest Products from the current affected
land owners?

-If Footner Forest Products should request another “Direct Control District” in the future would
the County of Mackenzie oblige?

- If Bylaw 656/07 is passed, as a group the land owners within the one mile “Direct
Control Zone” will seek legal advice.






THIS IS WHAT THE LAND OWNERS ARE FACING

“DIRECT CONTROL DISTRICT”

1. Purpose

The purpose of this district is to authorize and allow Council to exercise
particular and specific direction and control over the use and
development of land or buildings in particular areas of the County as
Council deems appropriate.

2. Uses of Land or Buildings

Council may regulate and control the use and development of land or
buildings in areas designated “Direct Control” by this Bylaw or any
amendments thereto, in any manner it considers necessary, including
but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the designation of
minimum or maximum lot areas, setbacks, building heights, floor area,
design, appearance3, landscaping, parking and floor plan specification.

3. Delegation of Authority by Council

Council may, by either resolution or Bylaw if it deems the situation
appropriate, delegate its authority to consider and decide upon a
specific or all applications for a development permit in Direct Control
Land Use Districts to either the Development officer or the Municipal
Planning Commission.






List of land Owners sent letters for the one mile buffer
rezoning.

The numbers correspond to the land on the map. These are the
owners according to land titles.

Ellias & Frances Forest 4,29

Garry & Ujan Forest 5

Eugene Seaward 6

Benny Gerbrandt 7

George & Helen Braun 8

Java Investments 9,10,11, 12
Gilles Larocque & Maria Klassen 19

Frank Penner 20

John & Helen Doerksen 21

John & Margaret Wiebe 22
Benchmark Environmental Inc. 23

Abe & Leona Wolfe 24

Colin Wolfe & Wendy Wiebe 25

Optimal Enterprises Ltd. 26

Mike & Donna Lea 27,32
Central Western Railway Corporation 35

Shayne and Sandra Stahl 28

Michael & Wendy Parkins 30

Larry & Diane Giesbrecht 31

Footner Forest Products Footner 1, Footner 2 & Footner
3, Footner 4

Crown 1,2,3,13,14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 33,
34,36 & 37 '

Town of High Level

Alberta Transportation






Agenda ltem # ]0. @)

C 'MACKENZIE COUNTY
L REQUEST FOR DECISION . . .
ackenzse Counby Neate _
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: February 27, 2008
Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Director of Corporate Services
'I.'it__l'g:: B Macl_(enzie Housing Lodge - request for a computer

BACKGROUND ] PROPOSAL:
Thé_County supports [ocal organizations in various ways.:

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

(" We received a request for an old computer from Mackenzie Housing for the use by
residents at the Heimstead Lodge (please see the attachment).

We hav_e an older workstation with an estimated value of $50 to $100.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That an old computer workstation be donated to the Mackenzie Housing Management
Board for the use by residents at the Heimstead Lodge.

O +
Author: Review Date: é’é M

_51_




-h?-



Joulia Whittleton

From: Barb [mhmbbarb@telus.net]

Sent:  Tuesday, February 19, 2008 2:59 PM
To: Joulia Whittleton

Subject: RE: computer

Joulia, Mackenzie Housing is looking for a computer that is able to be used for e-mail. We have a resident that
is asking for access to email and | don’t have any computer that we can use for this purpose only. If the
County has any old computers that you are not using, would your Council consider donating it to us for this
purpose. Thanks for your consideration of this request. '

Barbara L. Spurgeon

Operations Manager _
Magckenzie Housing Management

(780) 928:4349




-54-



Agenda ltem # lO B\

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie N :

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: February 27, 2008

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Director of Corporate_Services
Tltle e New Xerox Purchase for La Crete Office
BACKGROUND { PROPOSAL:

The 2008 interim budget includes $30,000 for a new Xerox unit for the County’s La
Crete Office.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

- We obtained a proposal from Xerox with respect to replacing the two rental Xerox units
with one upgraded unit.

Please note that, although under the new purchasing pollcy, the three quotations are
required for a purchase over $10,000/item and up, only one proposal was obtained in
this situation due to the fact that there is maintenance and support personnel available
for this product from High Level and to keep all our photocopier units within the same
supplier for compatibility and troubleshooting. In addition, due to the Xerox 430ST
lease expiration date, we would have to payout this lease if we decide to retumn this unit
today due to switching to a different supplier.

Existing units Quarterly payment | Annual (currently | Monthly volume
{currently leased): included in 2008 charge per copy
interim operating
budget)
Xerox DC460 (LC $2,375.32 $9,501.28 $.0143
main office unit) , '
Xerox 430ST : $1,126.38 $4,505.52 $.0130
(MRES office unit)
TOTAL ‘ $14,006.80

Author: Review Date: (@{\0 M

-5h-




New unit:

Budget

Price

Monthly volume
charge per copy

DC460 (LC main
office unit)

$30,000

$36,027

$.0085

Installation charge
(estimate, will be
charged to

$2,500

operating)
TOTAL

$38,527

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

2008 Budget

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the 2008 La Crete Xerox purchase capital project budget be amended from
$30,000 to $36,000 with the added $6,000 coming from contributions through the
general operating fund.

Author:

Review Date:

CAO

_'5 6_.



-

Agenda ltem # IO C)

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie Coun

Me'éting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: February 27, 2008

Presented By: William Kostiw, Chief Administrative Officer
Title: Northern Lights Health Region
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

See attached letter received from Jeff Fitzner, Chair of the Northern Lights Health
Region.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the letter from Northern Lights Health Region be received for information.

Author: _C. Gabriel Review By: g{o %IQ\

-57-



-h8-



2008-02-20 13:34 780-791-6029 »» 7809274266 P 2/3

é Northern Lights

MEALTH RECIQH

Joff Fitznar
Ph: 780.780.6020
Fax: 780.790.6019

-February 20, 2008

Mr. Greg Newman

Reeve, Mackehzia County
P.O. Box 640

Fort Vermition, AB TQH 1NO

Dear Mr-Newman

Thank you for your interest in an overview of the capital and operating plans for the entire health
region, with your particular interest in the Mackenzie area.

As you referenced in your lefter, the Northem Lights Health Region (NLHR} is in the process of
completing a Health Needs Assessment, as required under the RHA Act. Information gatherad from
this process has provided the healh region with the necessary information fo proactively plan
services, programs, and the resources required to meet the needs of the communities and
individuals we serve,

Stakeholder input has bean sought acress our region and many views have been heard and shared.
This planning phase is now winding down and we hope to have information frotn it consolidated ang
ready fo share back with our stakeholders across the region over the next couple of months. We
have heard representations from locai Community Health Councils throughiout the region and a
variety of other stakeholders as part of this process. This wealth of grass-rogts input will help ensure
our plan Is updated with the best possible current informaticn and input from the citizens of our
region.

Thank you for your kind invitation to attend a County Council meeting. Perhaps we can arrange for a
representative of our Board or Executive Administration to join ohe of your future meetings to
present an overview of our overall plans in the region, and also receive feadback from the Council
about its ongoing issues and opportunities for improving health services in the region. I'li ask our
Stakeholder Relations Committes of the Board (comprised of NIMR Board and Executive
Administration members} to arrange a follow-up with you to consider that path in the near future,
This committee has helped coordinate much of the community input into the Service Plan and
ansure views are adequately reflected and considered by ithe Board.

Thank you again for your Interest and support in the health and wellness of the Northern Lights
Health Region.

CORPORATE OFFICE

7 Hospital Street Fort McMurray, AB T9H 1p2 Ph. (780} 791-6020 Fx. (780) 791-602%

-59-



2008-02-20 13:34 780-791-6029 »> 7809274266 P 3/3

Sinceraly

a@@@#

Jeff Fitzner
Chair, Nerthern Lights Health Region

Cc  Honourable Dave Hancock, Minister of Health and Wellness
Frank Oberle, MLA Peace River

Page: 2

-60-



Wackenzie C;om@
P.O. Box 640, Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Phone (780) 927-3718  Fax (780) $27-4266
www.mackenziecounty.com

Januafy 10, 2008

Mr. Jeff Fitzner

Board Chair _
Northern Lights Health Region
7 Hospital Streat

Forf McMurray, AB

TSH 1P2

Dear Mr. Fitzner:

The Council of Mackenzie County would be pleased if you could provide us with
an overview of your capital and operating plans for the entire health region,
especially for the Mackenzie Region.

The Health Region has recently completed a needs assessment for the
communities in Mackenzie County which the County would like an opportunity to
review along with a plan of how the Health Region plans to address these needs.
The County is willing to offer support wherever possible for the projects in our
County or communities.

Thank you and we would appreciate your response as soon as possible. We
also encourage you to attend a County Council meeting at your earliest
convenience 10 discuss matters of mutual concern or speak to us about regional
matters. If you require further information please fee! free to contact me at (780)
927-3807 or (780) 841-3578, or our Chief Administrative Officer, William Kostiw,
at (780) 927-3718.

Sincerely,

pe:  Hon. Dave Hancock, Minister of Health and Wellness
Frank Oberle, MLA — Peace River

-61-



-p2-



Agenda ltem # ' ' . G,[

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie Coum

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: February 27, 2008
Presented By: John Klassen, Director of Environmental Services

Road Construction Request — Ernie Driedger

Title: SE 12-104-16-W5M

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Ernie Driedger applied for a road to be built to SE 12-104-16 W5M with the 2008 road
construction requests. The application was submitted, with an offer to purchase, on the
August 31% deadline. Policy PW019 Road Construction Eligibility and Prioritization
states:

1.1{e) “The road to be constructed to privately owned land shall extend only to the
nearest property line of the land owned by the applicant. “

2.1(b}, 2.2(b) "That the property to be accessed is not accessible via an adjacent
property that is under the ownership or direct control of the same
person(s) or group. Title searches will be done as of September 30 of
each year.”

A title search conducted on September 30" revealed that a title fransfer had not been
completed yet (the title transfer was completed on October 3, 2007) and under Policy
PW018 he did not qualify. '

A letter was sent to Mr. Driedger on January 17, 2008 informing him that his request
was declined during budget deliberations. On February 15, 2008 a letter was received
from Mr. Driedger asking Council to reconsider his request.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

For discussion.

b A

Author: Connie Friesen Review Date: : AO

-63-



COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

if approved for 2008 Road Construction, the project is estimated to cost $50,000 to be
funded from the 2008 Capital Budget.

RECOMMENDED ACTION.:

Option 1:
That the Road Construction Request to SE 12-104-16 W5M be added to the 2008 Road
Construction Budget.

Option 2:
That the Road Construction Request to SE 12-104-16 VW5M be declined.

Author: Connie Friesen Review Date: CAO

-64-



Ernie Driedger
Box 1537

La Crete, AB
TOH 2HO

February 14, 2008

Mackenzie County
Box 1690

La Crete, AB

TOH 2HO

ATTN: John Klassen

Dear Sir;

I, Ernie Driedger, put in a request for road construction to SE12 — 104 —16 -W5. 1 got a letter
from Mackenzie County that the request was rejected based on policy PW019. 1 am very
disappointed on the decision. Reason being I tried my hardest to get my loan documents and road
request in place before September 30™ 1 did get all documents in on time. I called the land titles
office and the official land transfer was completed on October 3rd. Nobody at the County
informed me that the title transfer had to be complete by September 30®. Before I purchased the
land I asked Connie at the County office if she could see any problem with a road being built to
the gquarter. She quoted “you probably will not get a road this fall (which I had hoped for) unless
you pay for it yourself. As long as you get your request in by September 30™ there should be no
problem for next years budget.” Based on her comments I put my place in to~wn up for sale
(which sold right away) with the intent to move to my new land. Now with mxy place sold and no
road to my new land it puts me in a difficult situation. I now need to rent or buy a new place to
live until the following summer because of no road to my new land. Which really doesn’t make
sense to do. I also need to find a place to move my possessions and equipment in the meantime
which will be very costly.

DPanny Buller (the previous landowner as well as the landowner of the quarter between my land
‘and the highway) gave me permission in fall to trespass on his land because it was
summerfallowed last year anyhow. Danny told me I could not do that this suxrnmer because he
was intending to seed his land and he didn’t want any ruts across his lawn or field.

1 talked to one of the councilors about my situation. He suggested on getting an approach made
unto the road allowance (which would be better than nothing) but without a road and the soil
being clay, I could not access my property anyway. With constructing my yard, I will need
cement trucks and other equipment to access my property, which would not work without a road.

I also can’t seed my land or access it with farm equipment. 1 also can’t apply for power till the
road is approved.

I strongly hope the council will reconsider their decision and build a road so wve can move to my
quarter in spring of 2008.

Yours truly,

Ernie Driedger

_65_






Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23

Title Road Construction Eligibility and Policy No. | PW019
Prioritization

| Legislation Reference | Municipal Government Act, Section 18

Purpose:
To define road construction eligibility and priorities.

This policy rescinds and replaces Policy PW002 — 95,

Policy Statement and Guidelines

The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 shall be solely responsible for new
road construction within public road allowances. Landowners may build roads on
municipal road allowances under the direct supervision of the M.D.

Definitions
For the purpose of this policy the following definitions shall apply:

Residence — a residence in accordance with the Municipal Land Use Bylaw
and subject to all approved permits.

General

1.1 Construction of roads shall take place on statutory road allowances or
road rights-of-way, wherein:

a) The construction extends and forms part of the existing network of
roads;

b) The construction meets all design, specifications and standards as
determined by the Municipal District of Mackenzie:

c) The application has been made on a “Road Construction Request”
form by the landowner(s) for Council’s consideration;

d) The project has been approved by Council; and

e) The road to be constructed to privately owned land shall extend
only to the nearest property line of the land owned by the applicant.

f) The road to be constructed shall not end in a wet area. The road
shall be constructed until the applicant has access to dry ground.

_67_



Page 2 of 3
PWG019

1.2 Consiruction outside of the road right-of-way shall be generally accepted
when:

a) The construction is necessary to meet the design, specifications

and standards as determined by the Municipal District of
Mackenzie;

b) The construction along the road allowance is not cost effective;

c)

The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 derives either an
economic and/or social benefit from the resulting development.

1.3 Applications for road construction must be received by August 31
annually. All applications will be reviewed and prioritized by Council.
Only applications approved during budget deliberation will be
constructed.

Eligibility

2.1 Consideration shall only be given for the construction of roads to access
agricultural lands provided:

a)

b)

A minimum area of eighty (80) acres of the land on any one quarter
is in:

i. Production, or

ii. Seedbed condition for the production of an agricultural crop, or

iii. Has been permanently fenced for livestock operations; and
That the property to be accessed is not accessible via an adjacent
property that is under the ownership or direct control of the same
person(s) or group. Title searches will be done as of September 30
of each year.

2.2 Consideration shall be given for the construction of roads for residential
access provided:

a) The applicant shall give the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23

b)

an irrevocable letter of credit, certified cheque or other suitable
financial commitment in the amount of $10,000 per half mile. This
shall be submitted by September 30", If the property owner builds
a residence on the subject property within a two-year period, the
irrevocable letter of credit or certified cheque shall be returned. If a
residence is not constructed within a two-year period the Municipal
District of Mackenzie will use the $10,000 to offset a portion of the
cost of road construction.

That the property to be accessed is not accessible via an adjacent
property that is under the ownership or direct control of the same
person(s) or group. Title searches will be done as of September 30
of each year.

-68-



Page 3 of 3
PW019

2.3 Industry/Commercial
Consideration shall be given for the construction of roads on a
case-by-case basis.

Prioritization
3.1 Prioritization shall be by road class in the following order:
a) Coltector
b) Local Road
¢) Low Volume Farm Access
d) Field Access

Within each classification consideration shall be given on a case-by-case
basis. Where funding allows, due regard shall be given to through roads
which benefit multiple land owners and road users. Approved applications
for road construction will be considered and reviewed as part of the
existing road network.

3.2 Council may approve construction of a road in the current year where:
a) Costs are expected to accelerate significantly in the following year,
and
b) The landowner is willing to finance the project in the current year
and provides the estimated costs up front, and
¢) Councilis willing to reimburse the landowner in the following year.

Council reserves the right to modify the priority of a project when the distribution
of costs for the construction of a road is presented as a cost shared project.
Subject to the discretion of M.D. Council, the upgrading of any of the road
infrastructure within the municipality may be given a higher priority.

Date Resolution Number
Approved December 19, 2001 01-713
Amended May 22, 2002 02-377
Amended June 4, 2002 02-393
Amended September 24, 2002 02-666
Amended November 26, 2002 02-848
Amended April 20, 2004 04-276

_.6 g_



-70-



Agenda ltem # l . B)

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REQUEST-FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Councﬂ Meeting
Meeting Date: February' 27, 2008
Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Direcfor of Cc;rporate Services
Title: . Gravel Reclamation Liability

Author: ' _ Review Date: . ' &AO"ﬁ/&\

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The County has various gravel sites. These sites will require reclamation work done
during the life of a pit or at the depletion time.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

1In 2003, the County engaged EXH Engineering in undertaking the Reclamation

Liabilities and Gravel Reserves Estimates study. Administration adjusted the estimated
reclamation liability based on these estimates and continued allocating $1.00/m? of
gravel removed from the County’s owned pits on an annual basis.

The County carried $442,975 in Gravel Pit Liabilities on its balance sheet at the end of
2006 in total.

During the 2006 annual audit, Administration and the County's Auditors discussed the
need to review and update the 2003 study for accuracy and relevance. Administration
engaged Stewart, Wier & Co. Ltd. engineering firm to review and update the 2003
study. We received their report in January 2008 (please see attached).

Administration was not satisfied with the assumptions made in the Stewart, Wier & Co.
Lid. report with respect to the unit costs and the quantities used. Therefore, an internal
review was done and is attached in a draft form. The local contractors and Alberta
Environment were contacted and consulted during this review. This review was also
possible due to the fact that we have internal expertise with respect to the reclamation
reviews and estimates.

Qur new gravel reclamation liability is estimated at $690 551 (current dollar value). ltis
proposed that the County continues to budget $1.00/m?in its annual operating budget

-7"..



with undertaking an annual internal review to determine if any additional adjustments
would be required.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

$247,576 adjustment to the current liability account is required. The 2007 operating
budget included $50,000. We are short $197,576 to make this adjustment in 2007,

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the Gravel Reclamation Liability report be approved as presented and that
Administration makes appropriate budgetary stepsfamendments to bring the
reclamation liability up to its latest estimate.

Author:. Review Date:

o=
=

-72-



N

‘This report contains 19 pages

_73_



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Drafi 1
Document review and approval
Revision history
Version . .7 - - Aulhor JL s Date s Lo 70 Reévision
1 Mark Schonken February 19, 2008
This document has been reviewed by
R LR Rebiewer s L) - *Date reviewed .- -
1
2
3
4
5
This document has been a

7 Date 'rf_:viéwed‘.:

I PP T [

_74_



N

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Contents

1 Introduction

2 Background

3 Summary of reclamation liabilities
3.1 Assumptions

4 North Vermilion Pit
4.1 Pit operations

42 Code of practice

4.3 Pit plan

4.4 Reclamation liability
5 West La Crete Pit
5.1 Pit operations

5.2 Code of practice,

5.3

5.4

6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7

7.1 Pit operation L
7.2 Code of practice’
7.3 Pit plan

7.4 Reclamation liability
8 Tall Cree

3.1 Pit operations

8.2 Code of practice

83 Pit plan

8.4 Reclamation liability

-75-

Draft I

it



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Introduction

During 2007 the County did not engage in any active reclamation operations at the various
operated pits. Minor reclamation did take place as part of the 2007 crushing confract. This was
due to the overburden material that was placed in previously excavated pit areas. This report
summarizes the remaining reclamation liability to the County based on the current pit conditions
and supersedes the reclamation report prepared by Stewart & Weir for 2007.

The County engaged Stewart & Weir to review the County’s reclamation liabilities as part of
the year end activities. Stewart & Weir were selected si ey were involved with the
County’s gravel program in 2007, However, review of the ubmitted by Stewart & Weir
highlighted a number of significant errors and omis are briefly summarized as
following: :

e The cost used to remove overburden

One gravel pit was used as the basis tod he li bility for all fhe various pits;

Based on the above, the € unty could not relay on the report prepared by S&W, as a result, a
reassessment was performed by the County.

-76-



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Background

Reclamation of gravel pits are mainly governed under the auspice of Alberta Environment.
Significant items to consider in assessing the reclamation obligation and liability are the
following:

Quantities that have to be moved, including the method and distance of transportation;

Availability of quantities, these would include the overburden to backfill and the topsoil
available for vegetation;

Groundwater and surface water impacts, gen L exploranon and extraction do

d quantities. This is mainly
ed solids in surface

tions arefalso ot significant enduéh to have a real

- TheC
acton e 18s;,and i%w N
2

yidy
impact on ground%vate

ill be based on the level of land use achievable
urrounding land uses; and

-77-



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Draft 1
Summary of reclamation liabilities
North | West La Tomp- Tall
Summay Vermilion Crete Fitler kins Cree Total
Backfilling
Overburden 67,793 87,150 | 162,500 32,500 [ 379,428
Topsoil 29,816 15,000 32,500 6,500 98,559
Infrastructure - - -
Sloping 5,000 10,000 40,000
Levelling 2,262 11,200 44,612
Vegetation 485 12,860
Sub-total 105,356 575,459
Administration 10,536 5,325 57,546
Maintenance 5,268. 2,663 28,773
Monitoring 2,663 28,773
Total 63,900 690,551

panf es used were either based on the volumes removed from

P ntities still above ground that will be placed back in the pit.
Where actual :qu es” were not available estimates were used, in these cases
reclamation will likely fiot take place within the next 3 to 5 years;

e The unit cost for hauling was confirmed with Abe Bannman from Kenelsen Sand and
Gravel, a significant roads and gravel contractor in the County region;

¢ None of the gravel pits have any significant infrastructure that would require
decommissioning or removal at reclamation;

e A general provision has been included in all the calculations to slope some of the banks
of the gravel pits. The reclamation approach that will likely be followed by the County
will be that the slopes will be decrsased by the overburden material;

s The leveling cost is a general provision based on management assessment of the gravel
pit leveling requirements;

L3 ]

-78-



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

e The vegetation costs are based on the areas disturbed and the estimated cost to re-

vegetate the disturbed areas. The unit cost was confirmed with the County’s agriculture
fieldsman; and

» Administration, maintenance and monitoring costs were assumed to be 20% in total.
These costs are consistent with those costs applied in the mining industry.

-79-



4.1

4.2

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

North Vermilion Pit

Pit operations

The County only started crushing at the North Vermilion pit in 2007 and will probably continue
with some crushing activities in 2008. However, it is unlikely that the County will crush the pit
beyond 2009.

The overburden material that was stripped prior to crushing
pit, the pit operations did also not allow any backfilling to
therefore, have to be hauled back to the pit. Hauling co
would have been should the County have used a dozirg ap

as not stockpiled close to the
ce. Overburden material will,
t double the cost than what it

Code of practice

; ,_.-be very flat, w1th the length of the
slope from the h1gh wall will be ap il . Based on the quantity overburden
available, this slope will be achievée i ork required on the high wall. A
20 meter slope will result i

REPLACED TOPSOIL

PERMITTED TO ALLOW BACKSLOPING
WATHOUT ACDITIONAL CVERBURDEN

[~—-properTY LNE

The final land use for the pit will be hay land which will be achieved with the 10:1 ratio as
required by the code of practice.

_80_



4.3

4.4

Pit plan

STRIPPEQ AREA
9685.5 m2
(1646 m2 ternoved
and atackpiled)

2485.7 m2
N74Z m3

Description

Backfilling

Top
Infrastr

Sloping 5,000
Levelling 2,262
Vegetation =3.23 150.00 485
Sub-total 105,356
Administration 10% 10,536
Maintenance 5% 5,268
Monitoring 5% 5,268
Total 126,428

-81-

Mackenzie County

Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Drafi 1



54

5.2

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Dragt I

West La Crete Pit

Pit operations

The West La Crete pit has been in operation for a number of years. The County acquired the
right to operate the pit in 1995 when it was transferred from the road authority. No specific
reclamation activities took place since 1995 except the backfilling of new overburden material
in existing pit areas.

the West La Crete Pit. The
cavatéd pit area. This is, however,
face. The total overburden and
igineers and as a result was

During 2007 no additional overburden stockpiles were cred
overburden striped in the 2007 was backfilled in a prior:
not applicable to the topsoil which were stockplledz'
topsoil material as at February 11, 2008 were n
internally calculated at approximately 68,000 ¢

Code of practice

The code of practice was not avai
review. As a result, the following
assumptions:

e The CLI rating

Although, a prudent approach was followed in the reclamation calculations for the West La
Crete pit, a detailed survey: and calculation will be conducted in 2008 of the pit area.

-82-



Mackenzie County

Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

5.3 Pit plan
Below is the top half of the West La Crete pit.

FXCAVATED APEA (L5033}
35723 1

]
1
]
1
1
1
i
]
i
|

£yl AGLUIE

S eREk 5%1&'& m,ISS 5

LISTCARED  AREA
TEQIFSRS

Y AEAS,
F655.0 '

-
i
[]
1
)
1
1
t
|
1
i
1
E
I
I
[
{
3
1
)
}
I

_jiﬁ...
L3
o

S

.Njﬂﬁ 18E

Serne,

prmam g anir s
o spesrerl

&\. PRACEN

oTRMOFPR .

Pl r T

A\

’ -
ey

p SR

ey anI

L

CERMURDEN
1FHETord

g
LI

_83-



Muckenzie County

Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Pit plan (continue)
Below is the bottom half of the West La Crete pit
ETOGAME

i
(40 VELUWE)

tREE LKE
L.SD. 8

T AREA {150 B}

it
e

—— -..———::_—.;’-'\_ -

P

1
“y Roviod I A

128838 m* ;
TP CF PIT R
- TITAL ARSA
e o
) /—r’/::

-

kY

T

AT GF T
-

——
Tor GF T

\

TIT AN

LA CRETEPIT

Draft 1

-84-



5.4

Reclamation liability

Below is a summary of the reclamation liability as calculated by the County:

Description Units | Quantities | Unit Cost Cost

Backfilling
Overburden m3 58,100 1.50
Topsoil m3 10,000 1.50

Infrastructure

Sloping m 100.00

Leveling ha 16.00

Vegetation 16.00

Sub-total

Administration

Maintenance

Monitoring

Total

_85_

Mackenzie County

Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Draft 1

10



6.1

6.2

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Fitler Pit

Pit operations

During 2007 the Mackenzie County acquired the Fitler pit and pressure was relieved from the
County to do any crushing before the lease would have expired. As a result, there were no
crushing activities at the pit and only a section was stripped ready for crushing. However, the
Fitler pit area has been in operation for a number of years. Currently there are an old water
filled pit, sloped and un-sloped overburden piles.

Code of practice

The code of practice for the North Vermilion pit:indicates that the. slopes within the pit will be
leveled to 10:1 ratlo The 1mpact of thls is. that th_ﬁl_ pit will be very. ﬂat w1th the length of the

The code of practice for Fitler indica
still applicable to the pit. However,

¢ filled with water. This assumption is
1at thére might only be one or two pit
ble. The code of practice for

REPLACED TOPSOIL

{
i s WATER LEVEL
L L Im /—
=TT T | 5 m !
L H 1
k:x:sm OF GRAVEL EXIRACTION
WASTE CRAVEL SERWITIED 10 ALLOW BACKSLOPING
WITHOUT ADDITIONAL OVERBURDEM 3
y

[ ~~—emPROPERTY LINE

11
-86-



Muckenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Pit plan

g
i\
o e \
108m

STOCKPILE
FOR AREA
kv

00

" OVERBURDEN PLACENENT A,

: SY00% FAE &
TR R

QIERMNG RYIMD 415 Ramct

activities and the proposed stripping as stockpile areas.
% in 2007 was backfilled in an old water filled gravel

“and stockpile quantities were guesstimated. These
Itation with Knelsen Sand and Gravel. Tt is management’s
asonable and prudent.

guesstimates wer: de
view that these guessti

12
-87-



Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007

Draft 1
6.4 Reclamation liability
Below is a summary of the reclamation liability as calculated by the County:

Description Units | Quantities | Unit Cost Cost
Backfilling

Overburden m3 50,000 3.25 162,50(}

Topsoil m3 10,000 3.25
Infrastructure
Sloping m 100.00 100.00
Levelling ha 28.50
Vegetation ha 28.50
Sub-total
Administration
Maintenance
Monitoring
Total

13

_88_



7.1

7.2

7.3

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Tompkins Pit

Pit operations

The Tompkins pit has been in operation for a number of years. The County acquired the right to
operate the pitin 1995 when it was transferred from the road authority. No specific reclamation
activities took place since 1995 except the backfilling of new overburden material in existing pit
arcas.

Code of practice

s  Overburden material availab]
any significant hauling;

Pit plan

West Section

S TR >

ek

STOCPLE 4
1$17m3

14

-39-




Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

East Section

T sTooKuE S

%_

4
SKPLE @

. ; STICAPIE
— oam3 b jony
~ ., — _ e ek
T N ST STEKALE
TR
%, 2okdm3
STOSKPILE TP oF PIF
FIT AFEL
Sel sTLEs Lot T FRWED
A )
A
= -~

oeeue's
‘-;Hin-ﬁ’; 5

QIKPILE B! }’f_\‘ THAL

7.4 Reclamation liabilit

he Tonipkins pit:

Below is a summaty of the reclam fion liability: for

Cost
Backfillitig

. . 1 29,485
Topsoil 14,743
Infrastructure N -
Sloping 100.00 5,000
Levelling 700.00 7,700
Vegetation 150.00 4,950
Sub-total 61,878
Administration 10% 6,188
Maintenance 5% 3,094
Monitoring 5% 3,094
Total 74,253

15
-9(-



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Mackenzie County
Gravel Reclamation Liability for 2007
Draft 1

Tall Cree

Pit operations

The Tall Cree pit has been in operation for a number of years. The pit is on Crown Land and is
operated by AIT for their maintenance of Highway 88. The County has used the gravel from
this pit primarily for the maintenance of the recreation site, located at Wadlin Lake, and the road
from Highway 88. It is not certain what the County’s 11ab111ty is for the pit reclamation from
past crushing activities,

lculations is it management’s

Although, guesstimates were used for the reclamatiog
ed involvement at the pit.

view, that these quantities are reasonable due to the G

Code of practice

The code of practice was not avallable for th
an AIT operated pit.

eview since it is

Pit plan

The pit plan was dateg n'Was not available at the time of

this report.

Backfilling

Overburden 000 3.25 32,500

Topsoil 2,000 3.25 6,500
Infrastructure hd -
Sloping m 100.00 100.00 10,000
Levelling ha 5.00 700.00 3,500
Vegetation ha 5.00 150.00 750
Sub-total 53,250
Administration 10% 5,325
Maintenance 5% ‘ 2,663
Monitoring 5% 2,663
Total 63,900

16
-91-



-92-



Stewart, Weir

& Co. Lid.
Surveying = Geematics « Engingering

Bonnyville Edmonton Calgefhg-

#140, 2121 Premier Way
Sherwood Park, AR
Canada TEH DB8

Tel, 780.410.2580 Web: www.swg.ca
Fax 780.410,2580 Email: info@swe.ca

Fort McMurray Grande Prairie



Reclamation Liabilities And Gravel Ressrves Estimates County of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. INTRODUCTION. ...t cee e [T 1
2. METHOD O L OGY et e e e e 1
2.1 Reclamation Estimation ........ccocoiiiii i 1
2.2 Gravel Reserve Estimation............ooo i, 1
2.3 Consumption Estimation ...........cccociiiiii i 2
2.4 Life Expectancy Of An Individual Gravel Source........c..ooviiiiinnn 2
2.5 Sites Considered...... ... e 2
3. RECLAMATION ESTIMATE .. ... e 2
3.1 CoUNtY SIS, et 2
3.2 Alberta Infrastructure and Transporiation Sites.........cooeiivinne . 3
3.3 Private SHes. . 3
3.4 Total Reclamation Liability...........c.ooooiiiiii e 3
4, GRAVEL RESERVES. ... ..ottt v vt st a e e 3
4.1 County Gravel Reserves. ... 3
4.2 Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation Reserves...............ocueee. 3
4.3 Private ReSerVeS. .ot e 3
5. ANNUAL COMSUMPTION. ..ot 4
5.1 Consumption of County Reserves.........cocveiiiiviiivcnc i e 4
5.2 Consumption From Private Sources...........cooiiiiiiiiiiininiiniinin, 4
6. LIFE EXPECTANCIES. ...t e e e 4
6.1 County RESOUICES. ... it e 4
7. FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY ..ottt e ve e e e s daaaenae 4
7.1 Explanation of Reclamation Liability Reserve Requirements........... 4
7.2 Estimated Reclamation Liabifity Reserves.........coooiviiiiiccniiieennens 4
7.3 Allocation Of Funds For Reclamation............oovoeiiiis 5
8. SUMMAIRY ..ottt e e e e e 5

Stewart Weir & Co Ltd,
_94_



Reclamation Liabilities And Gravel Reserves Estimates County of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

1. INTRODUCTION

The Coupty of Mackenzie No. 23 retained Stewart Weir & Co Ltd. to provide a report outlining
reclamation liabilities and gravel reserve estimates of individual gravel pits and stockpile sites
within the operational control of the County.

The methodology used to determine the volumes of gravel was based on standard engineering
practices used by Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation (AIT), Determination of reclamation
liabilities and gravel quantities for individual sites were calculated using survey data and
exploration information obtained for each pit.

2. METHODOLOGY

To estimate the expected life of a gravel source, the quantity of gravei reserves and the
consumption ra_te of the source must be determined. Evaluating these two factors determines
and estimated life span. At this time it is not known the projected usage quantities by the county.

Gravel pit operations require reclamation after depletion. As gravel pit operations are
considered long-term, the fiscal responsibility of the operator is to forecast and ensure that
these reclamation funds are available when required. By evaluating the estimated reclamation
cosf, a?ddthe gravel reserves for each pit, the necessary reclamation liability reserves can be
estimated. ‘ " ' '

2.1 Recl_amation Estimation

The development per unit costs is the basis of the reclamation projections. No discounting of
forward cost averaging has been used in these calculations. Allotment for the use of municipal
workers or equipment has not been considered. Staged reclamation has not been considered in
the development of unit costs but is a viable alternative that the County may investigate to
reduce long-term liabilities. g

2.2 Gravel Reserve Estimation

Estim‘ates for gravel volumes have been derived from the historical gravel prospect information
supplied by the County and AIT. Historical information, standard engineering practice and
previous experience are the basis for estimating gravel reserves.

Gravel volume calculations are based on the estimated areas where extractable material has
been identified through gravel prospecting and site visits. Gravel prospecting i$ carried out to
find the limits (horizontal and vertical) of the gravel within a site. Trace amounts of gravel may
be identified outside the actual site and this may account for any discrepancy between the area
for estimating volumes and that of the actual area mined. |

The second component of the volume calculation is to determine sections that have a similar
depth and consistency of gravel. These comparisons are obtained from test holes and pit logs.
An average depth is estimated for that area and the volume is determined for each of the similar
sections. The sum of the volumes of these similar sections provides the estimated volume within
the gravel source.

Stewart Weir & Co Ltd.
-95-



Reclamation Liabilifies And Gravel Reserves Esiimates County of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

2.3 Consumption Estimation

The annual consumption of gravel used by the County is directly related {o Public Works
policies. The consumption is estimated correlating the gravel source location to grader beaf and
policy information.

2.4 Life Expectancy Of An Individual Gravel Source

Estimation of the Life Expectancy of an Individual Site requires the estimated gravel reserves at
the particular site and the consumption rate from these sources. Dividing these two estimated
numbers derives an estimated life expeciancy.

2.5 Sites Considered

Sites evaluated to complete this report are operated by the County.

RECLAMATION ESTIMATE
3.1 County Sites

Reclamation estimates are calculated by multiplying the estimated disturbed area by the
estimated unit cost to reclaim the area. The unit cost for reclamation was calculated taking an
average cost to strip an area times the area to be reclaimed. The areas fo be reclaimed are
estimated from pit plans and survey data. Reclamation costs and gravel reserves (pit run &
crush) are summarized in Table 1.

Table 1 - Reclamation L|ab|I|ty & Reserves (2007) County Sites

Estlmated;- & E':‘élg\?;?d_ o Unit e
Lo R P 'Dlsturbed b Crush ak Cost Re' ) amatmn
Sl_t.e s _Lo__ca‘t[o.n-:.- Area (ha) “{cu ) (&fh'a)'f Llablhty
N RL Lot 9 NE
Vermilion | 26-108 -13 -
Pit W5 257,000 6.4 4139 27,743 $177,555
Tompkins | NE/NW 4- .
Pit 105-18-W5 | 1,101,770 33.0 8198 27,743 $915,519
Tall Cree NE 22 -102 -
Pit g9-W5H No daia 6.0 3620 27,743 $166,458
West La NW 4-106-
Crete Pit 16-W5 No Data 21.8 10817 27,743 $604,797
NE 8 -110-
Fitler Pit 15-W5 705,000 28.5 7991 27,743 $790,675
NE 25-108 -
Ward 15 -W5 109,348 0 0 0 0
Totals | 2173118 95.5 34,765 $2,655,004

Note: Estimated Reclamation Liability = Estimated Disturbed Area X Unit Cost

Stewart Weir & Co Lid.
_96_



Reclamation Liabilities And Gravel Reserves Estimates County of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

.3.2 Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation Sites

Prior to 1893 Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation, the local road authority, was responsible
for all road construction and maintenance within the present day County of Mackenzie No. 23.

3.3 Private Sites

Blue Angel and the Mercredi Pit have agreements in place providing a progressive payment for
reclamation through royalties. The County considers these agreements to remove any
additional reclamation liabilities. These sites are excluded from reclamation liability estimates.
3.4 Total Reclamation Liability

The total reclamation liability that the County accounts for is estimated to be $2,655,004.00. The
total reclamation is a future liability; the total amount that wili be required when all existing

gravel sources are exhausted. Until such time, only a portion of the total reclamation liability
exists for the year 2007.

4. GRAVEL RESERVES

The available volume of gravel at each County operated site is estimated based on gravel
prospecting and testing on some of the sites to validate the quality or quantity of each source.

4.1 County Gravel Reserves

The County currently has an estimated 2,173,118 m® of gravel reseives (Table 1). The County is
proactive in maintaining and securing gravel for present and future operational demands.

4.2 Alberta Infrastructure & Transportation Reserves

Alberta Infrastructure Pits are not included in this report, although a substantial amount of gravel
is available in the area but specific quantities are not available at this time.

4.3 Private Reserves

Privately owned businesses within the County own and operated gravel pits for the manufacture
and sale of gravel, both to the County and private purchasers.

5. ANNUAL CONSUMPTION

5.1 Consumption of County Reserves

Gravel material can be supplied to service areas through any or all of the sites the County
operates. Proximity is used to determine the most suitable site to attain material for a service
area. : .

5-

Stewart Weir & Co Lid.
_9 7_



Reclamation Liahilities And Gravel Reserves Eslimates County of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

5.2 Consumption from Private Sources

As part of the overall operations of the County, private sources are sought and considered for
the supply of gravel

8. LIFE EXPECTANCIES

It is difficult to determine the life span of a particular site. Variables, including growth,
economics, and changes in operational requirements, can affect the life span of an individual
site.

6.1 County Resources

Currently the County operates out of five gravel pits. Each of these sites plays an integral part in
the operations of the re-graveling program.

7. FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY

Reclamation of depleted gravel sources is the responsibility of the gravel pit or stockpile site
operator unless other binding agreements are in place. In the event that combined operations of
a gravel pit exist, then the responsibilities lay on each party involved. Mutual agreements are
usually in place prior to these operations outlining the responsibilities and liabilities of each

party.
7.1 Explanation of Reclamation Liability Reserve Requirements

Reclamation liability reserves are in place because the County has taken a proactive approach
in budgeting for future reclamation costs. Evaluating current gravel pit and stockpile site
operations and operations conducted in 1993 would allow for a comprehensive estimate of the
reclamation liability reserves. '

7.2 Estimated Reclamation Liability Reserves

The total Estimated Reclamation Liability is calculated by multiplying the number of hectares
disturbed by the cost per hectare to reclaim. The estimates exclude engineering and other
professional services required to complete reclamation contracts. The total estimate for the
reclamation liability reserve account is $2,655,004.00 as detailed in Table 1.

7.3 Allecation of Funds for Reclamation

To assist in the forecasting of fiscal responsibility, a unit of royalty can be derived based on
current gravel operations. The unit cost applied {o the gravel extracted from a site or when the
gravel is used, results in the estimated amount to be allocated to reclamation liability reserves
per year, divided by the rate of consumption. Applying the estimated unit cost to future gravel pit
operations and maintenance programs will effectively protect the County from future reclamation
costs. A minimum of $1.00/m’is recommended to procedurally allocate to the reclamation
liability reserves during graveling operations.

Stewart Weir & Co Lid.
_98_



l’

Reclamation Liabilities And Gravel Reserves Estimates Cotunty of Mackenzie No. 23
Study 2007

8. SUMMARY

This report has been prepared for the year 2007 and will require future updates to reflect
changes in gravel sources, consumption rates and any newly acquired information pertaining fo
gravel operations within the County. Stewart Weir & Co Ltd. accepts no responsibility or liability
for the accuracy of third party information and documentation.

The County has a significant stake in graval sources and the efficient and fiscal responsibility of
their operations. These sources provide essential maintenance to the County's Road Network.
The County must be cognizant of all aspects relating to Gravel Management, especially
reclamation liabilities and consumption rates.

Stewart Weir & Co Ltd.
John Lake
Materials Division

Reviewed by:

Bob Winship
Manager, Materials Engineering

Stewart Weir & Co Lid,
..g g..



-100-



AN

T

R N \,@ném%

AETPon,

o (“\\qchzmz&eswﬁmm\vu mesm JTESINY

; 5?\\0., N2ase. ond 05l a\‘ﬂ_d\ ‘5w\)m (s, gso(

2% BNas. Aecceaston Nevo oedh o *QUQ_”Q&

0000 0T \oi¥n o Nocel  sen - grelixe _agoug

|
i
I

“ 5&&)‘8@(’ Aro e &Q{YQ‘.\Q& o{'e@ﬁ&géb OLQOQQ_N\QAAV

Lo Ceotm, Mo f?mo_c'_\tb ond

/\)\1 C_C*O-QS“ on \Q\_L&%Q.—J( S,

Yo . N } )
} e - . e e e n _
. _}__.__ _-__.‘uﬁ_, . — . — S .
oy ), - S - — - - S
B - . I .

D _ - _ - N
).,.__-,.‘ ~ — o - e

:}___.__ _ - e m A —— — —— R

5 S R I

B0
D - R - e
L2 o e e
_ ..-)__m_" e et N . — S s






Agenda ltem # lg é) .

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: February 27, 2008
| Presented By: Ryan Becker, Director of Planning and Emergency Services

Bylaw 667/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone
Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M from
Hamlet Residential-Commercial Transitional District “HRCT”,

Title: Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1” and
Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2” to
_Public/institutional District “HP” (Hamlet of La Crete)
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The approval of the Mackenzie County subdivision, on part of NW 3-106-15-W5M,
included the following requirement:

Furthermore, that a rezoning request to rezone the affected lands from
Hamlet Residential-Commercial Transitional District “HRCT”, Hamlet
Commercial District 1 "HC1” and Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2” to
Public/Institutional District “HP" be presented to Council.

" OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

The subject lands currently fall under three separate zoning districts partly due to the lot
~ size and partly due to zoning amendments that were completed in 2004 in conjunction
with the Land Use Bylaw amendment. While the proposed use (public use) is included
as a discretionary use in each of the currently zoning districts, consideration should be
given to rezoning the lands to one zoning district which would simplify development of
the lands. Rezoning the subject parcel to Public/institutional District (HP) would reflect
the intended use of the land. _

The zoning of the current County office in La Crete is Public/Institutional District (HP)
which includes public use as a discretionary use.

. Development Officer

Author:  Marion Krahn,‘ Reviewed by: @:{AO m

-101-



COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

All costs will be borne by the applicant.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That first reading be given to Bylaw 667/08, being a Land Use Bylaw amendment to
rezone Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M from Hamlet Residential-Commercial Transitional
District “HRCT”, Hamlet Commercial District 1 "HC1” and Hamlet Commercial District 2
“HC2" to Public/Institutional District “HP” in the Hamlet of La Crete.

Author:  Marion Krahn, Reviewed by: CAO
Development Officer \

-102-



BYLAW NO. 667/08

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use
Bylaw, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a General Municipal Plan adopted in 1995, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has

deemed it desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to
accommodate a public use.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE

PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcel known as Part of
NW 3-106-15-W5M be rezoned from Hamlet Residential-Commercial
Transitional District “HRCT”, Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1" and
Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2” to Public/Institutional District “HP”,
as outlined in Schedule “A”,

First Reading given on the day of , 2008.
Second Reading given on the day of , 2008.
Third Reading and Assent given on the day of , 2008.

Greg Newman, Reeve

Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

-103-



BYLAW No. 667/08
SCHEDULE “A”
1. That the subdivision of the following property known as:
Part of NW 3-106-15-W5M be rezoned from Hamlet Residential-Commercial
Transitional District “HRCT”, Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1" and Hamlet

Commercial District 2 *HC2”" to Public/Institutional District “HP”, within the Hamlet of
La Crete.

™ = —gan ANE
——

10ath SIREET

FROM: Hamlet Residential-Commercial Transitional District “HRCT”,
Hamlet Commercial District 1 “HC1” and
Hamlet Commercial District 2 “HC2”

TO: Public/Institutional District “HP”
Greg Newman, Reeve Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant
EFFECTIVE THIS DAY OF , 2008.

-104-



‘Schedule B
Bylaw No. 46:

1

AN




-106-



Agenda Item # IQ_.BQ '

MACKENZIE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR DECISION

ac(}m‘eg

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: February 27, 2008

Presented By: Ryan Becker, Director of Planning and Emergency Services

Bylaw 668/08 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone
Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 from

Title: Hamlet Residential District 1 “HR1” to
Hamlet Residential District 3 “HR3” -

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The development department received a request to rezone Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1
from Hamlet Residential District 1 (HR1) to Hamlet Residential District 3 (HR3) for the
purpose of the placement of multiple family dwellings (four-plexes)

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

The applicant purchased the subject lot with the intention of constructing two four-
plexes on it. The applicant feels that this area would be favorable for this type of
development as it is in a centralized area between the schools and the additional traffic
would not negatlvely impact the area as the lot is located adjacent to a busier hamtlet
street, 98™ Avenue.

Several duplexes are located northeast of the subject iot and additional duplexes could
be constructed within this area in the future if permitted by the Municipal Planning
Commission (MPC). .

The applicant indicated that at present there are very few lots of this zoning within the |
hamlet of La Crete and those in existence are not available for purchase and
development as the landowners are not selling them.

A subdivision of the subject lot would be required in order to construct two residential
buildings on it. This is in accordance with the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw which
states:

Author:  Marion Krahn, Reviewed by: éﬁo M

Development Officer

-107-



S

4.9 DWELLING UNITS PER PARCEL

491 The Development Officer may allow an additional dwelling on a
parcel outside Hamlet boundaries.

Careful consideration should be given to the applicants intended development and the
parking required for it. In the past, the rezoning has been completed first and then the
parking addressed at the development permit stage; however, this could present
problems if the lot does not support the parking stalls required. The developer may then
incur additional costs to rezone the lands again to accommodate a different use.
Insufficient parking stalls create problems that are difficult to rectify once the
development has been approved and constructed. Furthermore, these parking
problems tend to become issues for the County staff to address and not the developer.
These matters negatively impact the public image of the County and should be
prevented by addressing them at the beginning stage of the development which in this
case is the rezoning application. In doing this the County could ensure that the
applicants’ desired development would fit the intended lands. This would also result in
the subsequent subdivision and development permit applications being processed more
efficiently as these issues would have already been addressed.

The lot currently contains a mobile home with addition which would be removed in the
future.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

All costs will be borne by the applicant.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That first reading be given to Bylaw 668/08, being a Land Use Bylaw amendment to
rezone Plan 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 from Hamlet Residential District 1 "HR1” to Hamlet
Residential District 3 "HR3” in the Hamlet of La Crete. Furthermore, that a tentative
plan by a surveyor is required, clearly indicating the proposed subdivision boundaries,
the placement of the buildings and the required parking stalls, prior to the second
reading of this Bylaw.

Author:  Marion Krahn, Reviewed by: ﬁ?ﬂ(o M

Development Officer

-108-



c

a LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION
APfLI(_:ATION NO. |
COMPLETE IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT -
NAME OF APPLICANT - | NAME OF REGISTER OWNER ~  — ———————
A alader Conslrhien Lid CSRIML
ADDRESS ADDRESS .
R W0
TOWR _ TOWN
Lalsthe & -
POSTAL CODE FHONE (RES) Bus. Co L POSTAL CODE PHONE (RES.) BUS.
CTOW 280 [AB-201 93000

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND AFFECTED BY THE PROGPOSED AMENDMENT

QTR./LS. SEC. TWP. RANGE M. OR

| PLAN(QO% eSS BLKQ \m\‘
LAND USE CLASSIFICATION AMENDMENT PROPOSED: -
FROM: C‘\\W\\ ‘ T0: C\H ?\5

xegene o aNeNd N T oo oy BN S0ed) Lok 4
D o accomicdidhe o duwellice S \B g (Roloy
NS \ok S e dfRd ooy Toer e, Do R0
oy Mo \ouster eiceets GIMIN N and ocfge
Aoesld dex Reseedk et tearding, WS & TS Ik

1S also loCaked ehusen DG SVEDRUS naon, Uaitg o

Ao e locaBin Ny NS du0e o duelOLeT,
A ge=e Ok O Ace URAN £0iD otk oy S

. 20040\
AN "\\(:Sf:kﬁ? 200 _To0e., c{%5 §ﬁ§\§3ﬁ%’ € gQQSEg\&éQ(ﬂJK {yjf‘ (gt)

¢

. REGISTERED OWNER DATE I

e dERINTTNIFSSIR VA SIS IV IR wm%m_

 VWEBA EN Losxﬁ THE REQUIRED APPLICATION FEE OF § \%D[I) © RECEIPT'NO. M
y |

APPLICANT DATE —

NOTE: REGISTERED OWNER’S SIGNATURE REQUIRED JF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT.

SANAD

-109-



NN

: AR
A A
T ey
MY W A\ TR o
NIRRT RS R /.f /,///V?/ S
NN w//,uw,/,,,/,z,,.,, S

A,

LA
Y-

.

2

.z

e,
-

e

2
Bz
=
p

=

R

/.
R

i ARSI

B

i

[

T1-ARLALIAMAN

Mt e AR AR WY




BYLAW No. 668/08
SCHEDULE “A”
1. That the subdivision of the following property known as:

Pian 6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 be rezoned from Hamlet Residential District 1 “HR1" to
Hamlet Residential District 3 “HR3", within the Hamlet of La Crete.

58 AVE

FROM: Hamlet Residential District 1 "HR1”

02 ST

TO: Hamlet Residential District 3 “HR3"

Greg Newman, Reeve Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

EFFECTIVE THIS DAY OF , 2008.

-111-



BYLAW NO. 668/08

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw,
and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a General Municipal Plan adopted in 1995, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has
deemed it desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to
accommodate multiple family dwellings.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcel known as Plan
6076RS, Block 6, Lot 1 be rezoned from Hamlet Residential District 1
*HR1" to Hamlet Residential District 3 "HR3", as outlined in Schedule

IIAJ"
First Reading given on the day of , 2008.
Second Reading given on the day of , 2008.
Third Reading and Assent given on the day of , 2008.

Greg Newman, Reeve

Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant

-112-



Agenda ltem # pg @3

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: _ Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: February 27, 2008
Presented By: William Kostiw, Chief Administrative Officer
Title: 'InformationICorrespondence

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The information/correspondence items will be presented on the meeting day.

.. ing g TRl e il it P A
« Mighty Peace Tourist Association — December & January Repo 123

A — Directional Signs

Y

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes. N

Author: 'C. Gabriel Review by: : CAOQ

-113-



-114-



ALBERTA
MINISTER OF INFRASTRUCTURE
AND TRANSPORTATION

RE@EHVE AR34692
January 30, 2008 : !‘ _-;Eé_—._%q
| | FEB 13 o0

Greg Newman MACKENZIE COUNTY
FORT VERMIL |

Reeve ON OFF!CE‘J

Mackenzie County

P.O. Box 640

Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Dear Mr. Newman:

Thank you for your letter of January 9, 2008. I appreciate your kind words and recognition of
Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation’s support and commitment for infrastructure
improvements in northern Alberta.

For clarity and to prevent any misunderstanding, I wish to confirm ouf verbal discussion of
November 6, 2007 and my December 11, 2007 letter regarding the Highway 88 base/paving
project. I made a commitment that this project will be considered in the province’s capital

planning process, but it is not yet planned for base/paving in our current construction program.

I know how important this project is to your community and hope to have some good news for
your council as budgets and priorities allow.

If further clarification is needed, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Luke Ouellette
Minister of Infrastructure and Transportation
M.L.A., Innisfail-Sylvan Lake

cc: Pearl Calahasen, MLL.A., Lesser Slave Lake
Frank Oberle, M.L.A., Peace River

320 Legistature Building, Edmonton, Alberta Canada TSK 2B6 Telephone (780) 427 2080 Fax (780) 422 2722,

[+ Mm:a]of])gv:x'd  pepicr



-116-



Northern
Alberta
Northern Alberta Development Council Development - s g 24 cnmanaevosrss

B AN
— N
206 Provincial Building Coundl % «E-§ POST CAHADA
9621-96 Avenue (S
“Deace River, AB T8S 1T4 s 01.15
. = O = D
. \ o 23S Tas 174 2008.02.07
Bill Kostiw 20 OO S
Chief Administrative Officer
Mackenzie County
Box 640 , R

Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

ACKENZIE COUNTY
ré?{f VERMILION OFFICE

Northern Alberta Development Council
Communicué
January 2008

Northern .

Alberta

Development
S Croenrik |

-117-



Norihein
Alberta
Developmeant
Council

The Northem Alberta Development Councif (NADC) met in
Beaverfodge, AB, January 16 & 17, 2008, for its regular
administration meeting and Regional Stakeholders Forum.

Dinner Meeting and Tour

Council was given a warm welcome by Mayor Leona
Hanson and the Town of Beaverlodge. The town council
hosted a dinner, including attendees Mayor Rhonda
Tofteland, Village of Hythe and Mayor Owen Smith, Town
of Wembley and their respective town council members.

A tour of the new Beaverlodge Public Library and the
Reaverlodge Hospital were among the highlights of
Coungcil's tour of the area.

Reglonal stakeholders presented on topics including:
health, post-secondary education, rural development,
tourism, transportation, water and forestry.

Health: Information was shared on the status of the new
Regional Hospital for Peace Country Health (PCH) to be
located in the City of Grande Prairie. The feasibility of
Public Private Partnership (P3) models for health facilities
was discussed. Concerns were expressed on the
replacement of the Beaverlodge Hospital, which is the
oldest in the province. The building is an infrastructure
priority for PCH. Affordable housing for patients with
chronic mental health illnesses was a cancemn, as was the
need for more psychiatric nurses.

Post-Secondary: The need for a “trained at home, stay at
home,” model was the key message from the post-
secondary presenter. Addressing the concemns surrounding
student access to training in the north was highlighted as a
priority, with particutar focus on medical training cptions for
the north.

Rural Development and Tourism: The Rural Alberta's
Development Fund is looking to fund champions in rural
Alberta. Capital projects are not eligible for funding, but
collaborative projects and those requiring funding for
human infrastructure may be eligible. Council was asked to
continue promoting northem tourism, particularly the River
of Death and Discovery Dinosaur Project in Grande Prairie.

Transportation: The need to continue twinning Highway
43 from Wembley to the B.C. border was the main issue,
along with effective access to rail service in the region and
continued pressure for 19 seater aircrafts to have landing
access at the Municipal Airport in Edmanton.

opportunity

NADC Communique

January 31, 2008

Water: Presenters emphasized the need for a water
supply system to meet the region's emerging needs.

Forestry: The forestry industry is facing tough times with
mill closures recently announced in High Level, High
Prairie and Slave Lake. Experts predict the down tum to
last into 2009. Reguests were made for action on Mountain
Pine Beetle and help to restore the industry’s sustainable
competitive advantage.

Medical Education Symposium

“In the north, for the north,” was the principal theme that
emerged at a Medical Education Training Symposium held
this past December in Grande Prairie. The Symposium
brought northern stakeholders together to sef a foundation
for ongoing collaboration and provide input into a set of
principles to guide the development of a medical education
model that serves the needs of northern Alberta.

Upcoming Events

Human Resources Conference

Unleash the Northern Potential Workforce Symposium,
initiated by the NADC and regional stakeholders, will be
hosted April 8-11, 2008 in Cold Lake, AB. Visit
wwaw.nade.agov.ab.ca for more information.

Bursary Deadline

May 15, 2008 is the deadline to apply for the

$ 3,500 NADC Bursary for post-secondary siudies.
Applications are available fram www.nadc.gov.ab.ca or by
calling the NADC Peace River office.

Affordable housing in northern communities

Dr. Avi Friedman, renowned affordable housing expert, is
coming to northern Alberta in June 2008. He will tour
communities, meet local proponents, and speak about
designing affordable housing and communities among
other related topics. For more information or to sign up,
please contact Jennifer at (780) 624-6278 or by e-mail at
iennifer.bisley@gov.ab.ca before February 29, 2008.

NADC Contact Information:
Phone: {780) 624-6274 Peace River
(780) 623-6982 Lac La Biche

Toll Free: 310-0000

E-mail: nadc.council@gov.ab.ca
Website: www.nadc.gov.ab.ca

{.ca

yaur connection te Albgria's north



NORTHERN LIGHTS HEALTH REGION
LA CRETE COMMUNITY HEALTH COUNCIL
LONG TERM CARE CONFERENCE ROOM
| JANUARY 10, 2008

PRESENT Annie Derksen Mary Janzen Nettie Wiebe
John Driedger David Froese

RECORDER Nettiec Schmidt

REGRETS Cathy Porter Jake Elias Eva Fricsen
Sarah Wiebe

CALL TO ORDER Mary Janzen called the meeting to order at 1745 hours.

APPROVAL OF Agenda was prepared at the table.
AGENDA
PREVIOUS MINUTES  Annic Derksen/John Driedger moved to approve minutes of December 4,
2007.
CARRIED
UNANIMOUS

BUSINESS ARISING HOME CARE

The CHC strongly recommends a new Home Care facility be addressed
in the Service Plan. The present building is deplorable and
unacceptable.

WALKING TRAIL

The letter has not yet been written to the Stakeholders Relations
regarding a donation from the Northern Lights Health Region. David
Froese volunteered to write a letter to the Stakeholders Relations and
provide a copy of it at our next meeting,

BOARD REPORT

None available as Jake Elias was unable to attend this meeting.

The council would like to make the following response to the previous
Board Report:

¢ The CHC is very impressed that the Board realizes the
importance of the CHC’s. This council looks forward to

-119-



La Crete Community Health Council January 10, 2008 — Cont’d...f2

NEW BUSINESS

continue to actively work with the Board.

¢ This council is strongly opposed to the Council of High Level
being involved in the Blackwell study. We have repeatedly been
told to think regionally, not locally, therefore the study should
not include individual committees.

¢ David Froese volunteered to represent La Crete on the
Stakeholders Committee. This council requests an e-mail
address for the Stakeholders Committee for immediate contact.

ADMINISTRATION REPORT

None available. Madge Applin did not join via video conference as
arranged.

LAB SERVICES

Concerns about Lab services to the Heimstaed are ongoing. A letter
was written by this council to Cheryl Hetchler at Dynacare Services on
March 21, 2007, A letter of response from Cheryl Hetchler written on
March 29, 2007, clearly stated that Northern Lights Health Region
would provide staff to procure blood at the Heimstaed, with delivery to
the Lab for processing. To date this is not happening,

DOCTOR SHORTAGE

Lack of doctors in La Crete is still a concern. There are not doctor
clinics provided regularly five days a week. This Council has real
concerns about what the 60 patients are to do when a doctor cancels a
clinic. '

CORRESPONDENCE

David Froese read a letter that was sent by the Council Chair to Jeff
Fitzner on December 19, 2007, regarding the expansion of the High
Level facility. A response has not been received. The Council requests
a copy of the survey that brought about this expenditure in High Level.

ANNUAL REPORT

Mary Janzen will provide an annual report at the next meeting.

This council feels very frustrated afier a number of years and numerous
requests for increased health services, and many surveys, with very

minimum accomplishments. We feel promises are being made to the
community and not being kept.

-120-



La Crete Community Health Council January 10, 2008 — Cont’d.../3

CONCERNS FROM THE COMMUNITY

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT MEETING

The following concerns have been brought forth from the community.

There is not an RN on duty in LTC 24 hours a day.

There is not always an RN and doctor on staff 24 hours a day in
the St. Theresa Hospital.

Is there a policy that women in labor are not admitted to the
hospital if they are less that 5 cm dilated? Some of these
women have a one and a half hour drive and need to leave home
in time. Ifthey progress slower than they thought they might
not be dilated to 5 cm. by the time they get in. Apparently
Mom’s have been turned away and have had to labor in their
vehicles.

Families ended up sitting on the floor in the hospital waiting to
be seen in outpatients. Is this not a health concern?

BIRTHING FACILITY

A birthing facility is needed in La Crete for the following reasons:

We have the fastest growing population in the region.

Travel time to High Level for deliveries is one and a half hour
minimum, depending on weather and road conditions.

Low paying jobs and overnight costs for families to stay in High
Level.

Our young parents having babies are exceptionally young, with
many married Mom’s being 18 and 19 years of age, and need
the support of their extended families.

Many older women having babies have numerous young
children at home while Mom is in hospital, makes it difficult for
Dad to commute.

Babies are being born in vehicles because of extended driving
times.

Dangerous travel during stressful times, with wife in labor and
wildlife and log trucks on road.

24 HOUR CARE FACILITY

A 24 Hour Care Facility remains a priority for La Crete.
Acute care beds are needed as we have an aging population with many
necessary hospital stays.

Next meeting is scheduled for February 14, 2008 at 7:30 p.m.

Meeting was adjourned at 2030.

-121-



-122-



Mighty Peace Tourist Association
December and January report to Council

December

The last General Board Meeting of 2007 was held on December 12, Several new board
members were in attendance. The meeting was very enthusiastic, Jim Reynolds volunteered
to replace Bohnie Weardon as the voting member for Mighty Peace Tourist Association on
the Travel Alberta North Board of Directors. The board also voted to proceed with
securing the Destination Marketing Funds for the Mighty Peace region.

Halvorson attended the first meeting of the newly formed Tourism and Travel Committee in
High Level. Attendees were very positive about the opportunities within Mackenzie County
and will work with MPTA to effectively promote the region.

January

MPTA partnered with Athabasca Country Tourism, Fort McMurray Tourism, Grande Prairie
Regional Tourism (6PRT) and the Busted Knuckle Chronicle to attend a series of four trade
shows geared to "riders”. Nicole Halvorson attended the Edmonton Biker Show, with othepr
DMO' attending Red Deer, Calgary and Vancouver Biker shows, These shows have proven to
be highly effective, with many riders interested in exploring the Northern Alberta Heritage
Trail (running from Edmonton to La Crete), as well as interest in the circle tours in the
Peace Country. : :

Each trade show distributed approximately 300 of each DMO visitor guide and over 3000
copies of the Busted Knuckle Chronicle (a weekly newspaper written by riders for riders).
The DMO's have alse parinered to advertise in 20 issues of the Busted Knuckle Chronicle fo
highlight circle tours, events and other destinations within our regions, Mighty Peace
Tourist Association has advertised a "Ride the North Survival Kit” in the 2008 vacation
planner. This kit will consist of “coupons” and certificates from within the Travel Alberta
North boundaries. MPTA will administer and monitor this program.

MPTA and GPRT traveled to Arizona together to attend the annual Quartzsite RV show.
This show is the largest RV show in the U.S. The DMO's represented the Deh Cho Travel
Connection (runhing from GP through the Peace to NWT, across NWT and south through B¢
back to GP). The show this year was even busier than previous years. MPTA distributed
double the number of Vacation Planners over last year. There was little concern about the
rise in the Canadian Dollar.

Most of December and January were spent creating the 2008 Mighty Peace Country

Vacation.Planner, which will be available in March.
Please direct any questions concerning this report to Nicole; 338-2364.

-123-



-124-



Foﬁ Vermilion
Tel: 780.

Mackenzie County
Box 640

Fort Vermilion, Alberta
TOH 1NO

February 4, 2008

( Dear Sir/Madam,
It is with the greatest of appreciation that we thank the Mackenzie County for the grant of
$10,000.00. With your contribution the new Executive Directors will put forward their
greatest efforts in improving the community as well as supporting it. The beautification
and visual presentation of the community is one of the-areas that we would like to excel

on this year.

Yours Truly,

Veronica Alward I @ENE

President
Fort Vermilion Area Board of Trade FEB 19 2008

MACKENZIE COUNTY
FORT VERMILION OFFICE

Established 1914 — “Where Alberta Began.”

-125-




-126-



Joulia Whittleton

Director of Corporate Services
Mackenzie County

Box 640

Fort Vermilion, AB

TOH 2HO

Dear: Joulia Whittleton

We have received a grant cheque from the Mackenzie County in the amount of $20,000 for
the La Crete Area Chamber of Commerce, and a second grant cheque in the amount of $5000 for
the La Crete Tourism Society. Please accept our thanks for your recent grant donation. This
money will allow us to expand our organization to serve the public in a more effective and
efficient way.

We greatly appreciate all that you have done for the Chamber of Commerce to date and
we look forward to working with you in the future. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely/

Larry Blhler
Chairman

La Crete & Area Chamber of Commerce
Unit 2, 10001 100 Avenue » Box 1088 La Crete, Alberta » TOH 2HO0
Phone: (780) 928-2278 www.lacretechamber.com Fax: (780) 928-2234
. -127-



-128-



Bag 200-27

9603 - 90 Avenue
Peace River, AB
T8S |'T4

Ph: 780-624-6225
Fax: 780-624-6122

Park Building

9806-98 Street

High Level, AB

F 120

( 0-926-5470
w. /80-926-21 14

Box 849

High Prairie, AB

TOG 1EQ

Ph: 780-523-6674

Fax: 780-523-6709

Box 70

Stave Lake, AB
TOG 2A0

Ph: 780-849-7354
Fax: 780-849-7356

“.:D g = Grande Prairie, AB
Persons with Developm;f = Z722 0283 Phone: 780-538-51 15

Northwest Alberta Community doard

#203, junction Point Village
9815 - 97th Street

i

"

Fax: 780-538-6123
; FEB 1% 2008 Web: www.pdd.org/Northwest

February 8, 2008 i R
|

MACKENZIE COUNTY
. FORTVERMILION CFFiCE N

e,

Mayor Peter Braun
MD of McKenzie #23
Box 640

Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Dear Mayor Braun,

The Persons with Developmental Disabilities Northwest Alberta Community Board
provides support for approximately 350 adults with developmental disabilities throughout
Northwest Alberta. Every year, the PDD Northwest Board hosts an annual awards night to
celebrate community inclusion in the Northwest and recognize the people, organizations
and businesses who are dedicated to improving the quality of life for people with
developmental disabilities,

This year is the 10® anniversary of the Persons with Developmental Disabilities Northwest
Spring Celebration and Awards Night. This evening is dedicated to celebrating the
successes and championing individuals as they succeed in their own lives while having a
positive impact on many others in the communities. The evening activities will consist of a
light buffet, speeches and awards, and will be followed by a dance for those who wish stay
behind and participate.

In previous years, close to 400 individuals with developmental disabilities, families,
service providers and community members celebrated the achievements. of individuals and
their supporters in the Northwest at this annual event.

I am inviting you as an elected representative of supportive communities to join us for this
time of celebration. The evening will begin at 6:00 pm at the Grande Prairie Inn on Friday,
May 9, 2008. An information and nomination brochure is enclosed for your review. We
also invite you to submit a nomination if you know of an individual or organization that is
eligible and deserving of one of our awards. Nominations will be accepted until Friday,
April 18, 2008,

I'hope that you will be able to join us for this time of celebration. The evening will begin at
6:00 pm at the Grande Prairie Inn on Friday, May 9, 2008. Please confirm your attendance

by May 2, 2008 by contacting Patti Diewert at our Peace River Community Office at (780)
624-6225.

Yours truly,
SIS i
S

Paul Renfree
Board Chair
Encl.

Our Vision ... People with developmental disabilities as leaders and partners in a world without barriers,



-130-



! L_ F3-18 2008
I S ——
11 February 2008 ] o

} T‘ir\CK: NZIE COL
NTY
TO: ADMINISTRATORS, COMMISSIONERS, SECRETARY TREASLERE—R JHILION OFFICE
All Counties, Mummpal Districts, Improvement Districts and Special Areas

As you know, AMA has been providing directional signs at rural and secondary roadway intersections
for many years as a public service. This program is designed to provide assistance to motorists
traveling the secondary and rural road network and we appreciate your assistance in identifying
locations and destinations for which signs are needed.

Due to the suspension of normal operations in 2007, our focus for the 2008 season will be
existing sign maintenance and replacement of damaged or obliterated signs. We will not be
completing new sign requests during this season.

If you wish to recommend an addition or change to an existing site, please complete the enclosed
form and return to this office at your convenience (fax 780-430-4861). Please include your phone
number so that you can be contacted regarding the request. If the request conforms to all
program criteria, our road-signing crew will attempt to accommodate the request next season, 2009,
while in your area. Your patience in this regard is appreciated.

If existing signs in your area have been vandalized, obliterated or otherwise removed but remain
largely intact, please do not re-install them. Piease inform us at the fax number above regarding
such situations.

If this letter has reached you in error, please forward to the appropriate individual.

Sincerely,

/R

Scott Wiison
Manager,
Policy Development and Promotion

Enclosure

RTA MOTOR ASSOCIAT.

Admlmstra’non Cemae 10310 G.A. MacDonald (39A) Avenie, Edmoniton;, AR TJ 6R7 .
~Mail: Box B180; Station Sotth, Edmonten, AB T6H 5X9 :




-132-



